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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small
and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors”) of Noble Engineering Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the "GEM
Listing Rules’) of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “ Board") of Noble Engineering Group
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present our annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

OVERVIEW

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were successfully listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 29 September 2017 (the “Listing Date").
Stepping into the second year after the Listing, the Group has encountered
intense competition in the wet trades industry landscape in Hong Kong.
Although the Group has enhanced its efficiency and capacity by utilising the net
proceeds from the Listing to acquire new machineries and equipment, the
intensified competition in the market has cast a negative impact on the Group's
tendering success rate and profit margin.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$364.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
10.9% as compared to approximately HK$408.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2018. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded profit
attributed to owners of the Company of approximately HK$11.9 million as
compared to profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 of approximately HK$13.2
million. The decrease of the profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in
revenue and reversal of loss allowance, and increase in professional expenses
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PROSPECT

In light of the core difficulties in the wet trades industry, the Group intends to
implement a more prudent approach in project selection in the upcoming year;
that is to say, the Group will selectively place tenders to well-established
contractors and remarkable business partners to ensure projects on hand
remain steady and receivables are sound.

The Group will continue to improve our operating efficiency and profitability of
our business and plan to expand our fleet of machinery and equipment, which
will enhance the basis of our technical capability to bid for future projects. The
Group will also proactively seek opportunities to expand our customer base and
market share and undertake more wet trades projects which will enhance value
to our shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board believes the Group’s business strategy and industry expertise could
generate and contribute greater value to its shareholders and investors.

Tse Chun Yuen
Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE W R D

DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS AND
PROSPECTS

The Group performs wet trades works as a subcontractor in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a net profit of
approximately HK$11.9 million as compared to a net profit of approximately
HK$13.2 million for the same period in 2018. The Directors are of the view that
the decrease of net profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
and reversal of loss allowance , and increase in professional expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

OUTLOOK

The Shares were listed on GEM on 29 September 2017 by way of share offer (the
“Share Offer”). The Group always strives to improve our operating efficiency
and profitability. The Group plans to expand our fleet of machinery and
equipment, which will enhance the basis of our technical capability to bid for
future projects. The Group will also proactively seek opportunities to expand our
customer base and our market share and undertake more wet trades projects
which will enhance value to our shareholders.

The net proceeds from the Share Offer provide financial resources to the Group
to meet and achieve our business objectives and strategies which can
strengthen the Group's market position in wet trades works services.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors believe that there are potential risks and uncertainties involved in
the operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control. The Directors
believe the more significant risks relating to the business are as follows:

Our revenue is mainly derived from projects which are non-recurrent in
nature and any failure of our Group to secure tender contracts would
affect our operations and financial results;

Error or inaccuracy in estimation of project duration or costs when
determining the tender price may result in substantial loss incurred by
us;

If progress payment or retention money is not paid to us in full as a result
of disputes over our work done, our liquidity position may be adversely
affected; and

Our performance depends on trends and developments in the wet
trades industry.

A detailed discussion of the risk factors is set out in the section headed “Risk

Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 September 2017 (the
"Prospectus’).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental, social and
governance ("ESG") strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible for the
Group's ESG risk management and internal control systems to ensure that the
ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met.

The details of ESG performance of the Group are set out in the ESG Report on
pages 30 to 37 of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and has
implemented certain policies to ensure that its employees are provided with
competitive remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous professional
training. The Group also maintains good relationships with its customers and
suppliers, without whom success in the Group’s production and operation
would be at risk.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately HK$364.2 million, which decreased by approximately 10.9% as
compared to the same period in 2018. The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to decreased value of contracts awarded during the year ended 31 March 2019
and that majority of our contracts were mostly completed in the third quarter of
calendar year 2018.

Gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$12.6 million or 29.7%, from
approximately HK$42.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to
approximately HK$29.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2019. The decrease
in the Group's gross profit was primarily due to the decrease in our revenue. The
Group's gross profit margin decreased from 10.4% for the year ended 31 March
2018 to 8.2% for the year ended 31 March 2019, which was primarily due to the
increase in the rates charged by our subcontractors.

Other income and gain

Other income and gain decreased by approximately HK$4.8 million from
approximately HK$5.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to
approximately HK$605,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease of reversal of loss allowance for the year ended 31
March 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE W R D

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by approximately
HK$12.9 million or 44.6% from approximately HK$28.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 to approximately HK$16.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2019. The decrease was mainly due to non-recurring listing expenses of
approximately HK$13.6 million incurred for the year ended 31 March 2018, while
partially offset by the professional expenses of approximately HK$5.1 million
incurred for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$2.6 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 91.6% to approximately HK$18,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2019 from approximately HK$215,000 for the same period in
2018, which was mainly due to decrease in bank overdrafts interest for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded profit attributed to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$11.9 million as compared to profit
for the year ended 31 March 2018 of approximately HK$13.2 million. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in gross profit and reversal of
loss allowance, and increase in professional expenses.

Final dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Capital structure

The Shares were listed on GEM by way of Share Offer of 150,000,000 Shares at a
price of HK$0.47 per share on 29 September 2017. There has been no change in
the capital structure of the Group since the Listing Date and up to the date of
this report.

Liquidity, financial resource and funding

We financed our operations primarily through cash generated from our
operating activities. During the year ended 31 March 2019, we did not have any
bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2019, we had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$48.8 million (2018: approximately HK$62.9 million) and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$5.1 million (2018: nil).

Our primary uses of cash and cash equivalents have been and are expected to
continue to be operating costs and capital expenditure.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 March 2019 was nil (2018: Nil). It was
calculated by dividing total obligations under total bank borrowings by total
equity as at the end of each reporting period multiplied by 100%.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the Group's
bank balances and maintain strong and healthy liquidity to ensure that the
Group is well placed to take advantage of future growth opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

There was no significant investment, material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2019.

Significant investments held by the Group

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no significant investment held
by the Group.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this report, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31 March 2019.

Foreign exchange exposure

Most of our Group’s transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars which
is the functional and presentation currency of the Group. As such, the Directors
are of the view that the Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy.

Charge of Group assets

As at 31 March 2019, aside from pledged bank deposit of approximately HK$5.1
million, no asset of the Group was pledged as security for bank borrowing or
any other financing facilities (2018: Nil).

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
HK$3.8 million, which was used in the purchase of plant and equipment.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no significant capital commitments.

Segment information

Management considers that the Group had only one operating segment which
is mentioned in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Information of employees

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 42 full-time employees working in Hong
Kong (31 March 2018: 46). The total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments
incurred during the year ended 31 March 2019 were approximately HK$17.2
million (2018: approximately HK$18.9 million).

Employees are remunerated based on their qualifications, position and
performance. The remuneration offered to employees generally includes
salaries, allowances and discretionary bonus. Various types of training were
provided to the employees.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes is set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN RO

Comparison of business objectives with actual business XBEREERERERLEER

progress
An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the Prospectus with

the Group's actual business progress for the period from the Listing Date to 31
March 2019 is set out below:

BErmESMEE_T-NF=ZA=+—HI-BPRNBRE
RAHEBEREASBEEREBERLBOTAOT

Business objectives up to

31 March 2019 as stated

in the Prospectus
BRERABE
ZE-NAF=ZA=+—HLH
X%EE

Business Strategies
as stated in the Prospectus Actual business progress up to 31 March 2019

BE-—Z-NF=ZA=Z1+-BHLNEBEKER

BRERFAMER R

10

Expanding our market share and
competing for more wet trades projects
which require the issue of surety bonds

BABRMOTHEERLRFRESLR
ERAIREREKTIZIEA

Further strengthening our manpower

E—mEfnmAF

Acquisition of machinery and equipment

BE#SLRE

To take out surety bonds for seven
contracts

A& KEH B ORE

To hire three site agents, four
assistant site agents, two assistant
quantity surveyors and two safety
officers

To hire an accountant for financial
reporting purpose

Provide training to our existing and
newly recruited staff and/or sponsor
our staff to attend training courses
on occupational health and safety

SHE-RMBETE - OERIEM

The Group has placed a project with surety bond
requirement.

FEEA—EEREHBHRFENIERR -

The Group has hired two site agents, five assistant site agents,
one assistant quantity surveyor and one safety officer

The Group has internally promoted an administrative and
accounting clerk to an accountant, who is solely responsible
for financial reporting and hired a new staff to fill the vacancy
of the administrative and accounting clerk.

The Group has provided internal training to staff and

sponsored our staff to attend training courses on
occupational health and safety.

AEEDEF_RHMRTE REPEMBRIE  —H&

BIE —LPBIHASRE HEINNEAR—ZZEEA
&R EEA

I — BB RARITH B RE
TiE

REFBRARMEBENE TRH
Filk, REHRMHETLE
BEERERRZ2EIRE

Purchase nine forklifts, 18 plaster
spraying machines and 1,550 sets of
parts for plaster spraying machines

BENBNE - 18 PP EE R
B 1,550 B SRE R AR 1
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The Group has acquired 27 plaster spraying machines and
1,250 sets of parts for plaster spraying machines

REBDBE 27 MV EERHE R 1250 B
MR AR



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DM

FERERR
EHAERIBEFEENGEEARAAENRFEERRLE
il EWFX)AB413BEET - £LETE - BNFRIEA
ERBEHERERRAEAARRET S MAAEREREER -

Use of proceeds

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the underwriting fees and
other listing expenses borne by the Company) amounted to approximately
HK$41.3 million. After the Listing, a part of these proceeds has been applied in
accordance with the future plans and use of proceeds as set out in the
Prospectus.

R-ZZE-—NAF=ZA=+—8 LTSI EFENEHS
MM

An analysis of the utilisation of net proceeds from the Listing as at 31 March
2019s set out below:

Planned use of net
proceeds up to
31 March 2019

Total planned as stated in Actual use of net
use of net proceeds the Prospectus proceeds up to
as stated in BE-Z-—NF 31 March 2019
the Prospectus =A=+—H BE-_Z—-h%
BRERREH BRERH =A=+—H
FRGFIERREM FRGFIEEREM FRGFIETRREM
I AR sTEIEAER BEREAER
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEERT BEERT BEERT
Taking out surety bonds for BRI BRI E ORE 203 170 203
contracts we plan to tender
Further strengthening our i — NS E A 80 76 24
manpower
Acquisition of machinery and BEMERERE 7.7 56 59
equipment
Repayment of bank overdraft BERITEIR 32 32 32
facility
General working capital —MREEES 21 2.1 2.1

The business objectives, future plans and planned use of proceeds as stated in
the Prospectus were based on the best estimation and assumption of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus
while the proceeds were applied based on the actual development of the
Group's business and the industry.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant events from the end of the reporting period to the
date of this report.

AIRERZMENER BR - KRG B KA EFOR B A%
THMRIBR AR 5% (Bl A S 1R i B AR B S AR R T AR IH My B A b T
RBRFIE - MASKADREBEAEERERITENER
BRISER -
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AEBBARENRERNERESHBERLEBAER -
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Directors and Senior Management

EEKkEREEE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (F#&/R) (“Mr. Eric Tse”), aged 69, is the chairman of the
Board, an executive Director, compliance officer and one of our controlling
shareholders. He was appointed as a Director on 12 April 2017 and redesignated
as an executive Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board on 14
September 2017. Mr. Eric Tse is the co-founder of Eric Tse Cement Works
Company Limited ("Eric Tse Cement Works"), a principal operating and wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and has been a director of that company
since 9 October 1997. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Eric Tse is responsible for
the overall strategic planning, business development, and corporate
management, sales and marketing and quality control of our Group. Mr. Eric Tse
is a director of Land Noble Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Eric Tse has over 35 years of experience in the wet trades industry. Mr. Eric
Tse obtained a plasterer trade certificate, tiler trade certificate and bricklayer
trade certificate in 1996 from the Construction Industry Training Authority.

Mr. Eric Tse is the founding president of Hong Kong Construction Sub-
Contractors Association Limited (B/&REX D 2B R A A]) and had
acted as the president of the association until he retired in 2011. Mr. Eric Tse was
named permanent honorary president of Hong Kong Construction Sub-
Contractors Association Limited in 2011. Mr. Tse was a course instructor of
bricklaying, plastering and tiling course organised by Construction Industry
Training Authority from 1977 to 1978. Mr. Eric Tse has been the president of
Association of Plastering Sub-Contractors Limited (JEZKE 15 & AR A &) since
1997 and has held the role of founding president since 2015.

Mr. Eric Tse is the elder brother of Mr. Tse Chun Kuen.

Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (##&&2) (“Mr. CK Tse”), aged 67, is an executive
Director, chief executive officer, a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company and one of our controlling shareholders. He was appointed as a
Director on 12 April 2017 and redesignated as an executive Director of our
Company on 14 September 2017. Mr. CK Tse is the co-founder of Eric Tse
Cement Works and has been a director of that company since 9 October 1997.
Mr. CK Tse is responsible for formulating corporate and business strategies and
making major operation decisions of our Group. Mr. CK Tse is a director of Land
Noble Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. CK Tse has over 35 years of experience in wet trades industry. Mr. CK Tse
obtained the tiler trade certificate ($fi FL T #8575 &) granted by Construction
Industry Training Authority (&2 5|8k B) and Vocational Training Council
Hong Kong (BB ZE SR B) in May 1999

Mr. CK Tse is the younger brother of Mr. Eric Tse.
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Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Wai Lung (BRf£8E) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 38, was appointed as our
non-executive Director on 10 August 2018. He is responsible for providing
advice to the Board, overall strategic planning and business development of the
Group.

Mr. Chan has years of experience in business planning and development. Mr.
Chan has been an executive Director and the chairman of the Board of Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 8018, the shares of which
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since June 2017. Mr. Chan
has been a director of Draco International Investment (Holdings) Limited
(specialising in designing corporate structures) since July 2013, the chairman of
the board of directors of Elite Pro-Management Limited (specialising in business
process outsourcing) from October 2015 to July 2018, and a director of Draco
Human Resources Management Limited since November 2016.

Mr. Chan was appointed as a business development consultant by the
Management Committee of the Haining Economic Development Zone,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC in April 2017. In October 2017, he obtained his
Honorary Doctorate in Business Administration from Sabi University in France.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji (ZEX) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 38, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017.
He is @ member of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Wong has extensive experience in business management and operation
supervision. Mr. Wong has been employed by Champway Technology Ltd. since
November 2005 and became its operation director since January 2013. Mr.
Wong was a technical manager in Champway Technology Ltd. from November
2005 to December 2012 where he was in charge of various projects. Mr. Wong
oversaw the daily operation, quality control and research development of a
biodiesel pilot plant from 2006 to 2008. Mr. Wong was in charge of designing an
industrial scale biodiesel refinery plant from 2008 to 2010 and he was
responsible for sourcing equipment, coordinating with contractors, vendors and
consultants. Furthermore, in the period of 2010 to 2012, Mr. Wong was in charge
of leading the production team in carrying out testing and commissioning of
the biodiesel plant and the daily production operation after finishing the testing
and commissioning and was responsible for maintaining production related
licenses. In his current position as the operation director, Mr. Wong is
responsible for overseeing the daily operation, fleet supervision, local biodiesel
promotion and liaison with government bodies and other external
communications. Also, Mr. Wong is currently the sole director of Fai Yeung
Trading Company Limited.

Mr. Wong graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of science degree in May 2003 and was placed on the Dean’s List for the
academic year 2002/2003. He then obtained a master of philosophy degree in
December 2005. Mr. Wong also obtained a Certificate of Competence in Safety
Management of Dangerous Substances from the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in March 2006.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENESHEERE

Ms. Chung Lai Ling (&) (“Ms. Chung”), aged 57, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017. She is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. She is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Ms. Chung worked as an administration officer at Maunsell Consultants Asia
Limited. (currently known as AECOM Asia Company Limited) from April 2001 to
June 2006. Ms. Chung worked in Care & Health Limited, a subsidiary of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (Stock code: 896, the shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange) in its health care business over 10
years from July 2006 to February 2017, with the last position as director.

Ms. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from York University in Canada in
June 1987.

Mr. Tang Chi Wai (58%1&) (“Mr. Tang”), aged 45, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017. He is chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent judgement and advising on the issues of
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in auditing and accounting. Mr. Tang
has been serving as a financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative of Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026,
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since
June 2008. Mr. Tang has been responsible for financial and accounting functions
as well as secretarial and compliance related matters of the aforesaid company.

Mr. Tang has been an independent non-executive director of (1) Century Group
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as CHerish Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 2113, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) since September 2016, (2) Xin Point Holdings Limited (stock code:
1571, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange)
since June 2017 and (3) ISP Global Limited (stock code: 8487, the shares of
which are listed on GEM) since December 2017.

Mr. Tang graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor
of arts (honours) degree in accountancy in November 1996. He has been a
practising Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since April 2001 and a Certified Internal Auditor of the
Institute of Internal Auditors since November 2015. Mr. Tang has also been a
holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries since August 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSHEERE

Over the years, Mr. Tang has also obtained various professional qualifications ZEWR A ENESUTTREEERLEE TG
and memberships including the following:

Professional qualifications Dates of admission
HEERK A B
Member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants September 2003
ENREH TGS E =ER=FNA
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants January 2005
R ARGTMAGEREE —ZETRF—A
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants September 2009
BEEGMAGEREE “EThFNA
Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong July 2010
EEHBREAREA —F-TFLA
Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators July 2015
BRFHAWERITRABREGEREE —E-RFELA
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries July 2015
BEERTWELAGERGE —E-RFtA
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors April 2015
EAEEPUERER —E-nE+LA
Senior Management EREERE
Mr. Tsoi Chi Hei (57 E8) (“Mr. Tsoi”), aged 31 is our Group’s financial BEREE ((R]ELE]D  31m ARNEEMBEERAT
controller and company secretary. He is responsible for the overall financial WE - FEERSENERUBEEMAREBEARAA
management and reporting and company secretarial matters of our Group. MEEH -

Mr. Tsoi has over 8 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial BOUETER QLYK ERGB AR FLR -
management. Mr. Tsoi worked in Shinewing (HK) CPA Limited from July 2012 to BEER-_ZT-—_FHtAE-_T—NF+ = AEBMNMEK
December 2014, his last position was a senior accountant Il. He then worked in RR(ES)SSMEBMBERAR B2 REBMLAEE

KPMG China from December 2014 to January 2017, his last position was an audit —REREEM. it BER-ZZ-—HE+_AZ=Z
manager. —tF-AEBRTPBRETH G ERA - K2 RER

AL PRI

Mr. Tsoi obtained a bachelor's degree of accountancy from The Hong Kong BAHETE T -THE+-AREEEIAZENEG 22
Polytechnic University in November 2010. He was admitted as a member of The TEA - FRZZT—NF=ARBEEHMAS((EES
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”") in March AHAgDEMNATE - FE T N\FZARATED
2014. He has been a practising Certified Public Accountant of the HKICPA since TR AR R G FTAD o

March 2018.
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Corporate Governance Report
{l'_\%kk/m #& =

INTRODUCTION

The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective management, a
healthy corporate culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholder value. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company acknowledges the need and importance of corporate
governance as one of the key elements in creating shareholder value. The
Company is also committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance that can protect and promote the interests of all shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability of the Company. For corporate
governance purpose, the Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules since the
Listing Date up to the date of this report. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
to the best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing, as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities
transactions by the Directors in respect of the shares of the Company (the
“Required Standard of Dealing”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Required Standard of Dealing and there was no event of non-compliance
during the year ended 31 March 2019

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including but not limited to formulating and approving the overall strategies
and business performance of the Company, monitoring the financial
performance and internal control as well as overseeing the risk management
system of the Company and monitoring the performance of senior executives.
The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including the development and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management officers of the

Company was maintained by the Company with coverage for any legal liabilities
which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Daily operation and management of the business of the Group, including the
implementation of strategies are delegated to the executive Directors along
with other senior executives. Execution of operational matters and applicable
authority are delegated to the management by the Board with clear directions.
They report periodically to the Board on their work and business decisions.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (Chief executive officer)
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (resigned with effect on 10 September 2018) Mot

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Wai Lung (appointed with effect on 10 August 2018) o€

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji
Ms. Chung Lai Ling
Mr. Tang Chi Wai

Notes:

(1) Ms. Tse Ming Hei resigned from her role as an executive Director and chief
executive officer with effect from 10 September 2018. For further details, please

refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10 September 2018.

(2) Mr. Chan Wai Lung was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 10
August 2018. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 August 2018.

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the members
of the Board are set out in “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 12 to
15 of this report.

The number of independent non-executive Directors in proportion to total
Board members is higher than what is required by Rule 5.05A, 5.05 (1) and (2) of
the GEM Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive Directors of a listed
issuer must represent at least one-third of an issuer’s board. The three
independent non-executive Directors represent more than one-third of the
Board and at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. With the diverse
experience of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors and the nature of the Group’s business, the Board considered that the
Directors have a balance of skills and experience for the business of the Group.

Corporate Governance Report
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The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board as
they bring an impartial view on the Company’s strategies, performance and
control, as well as ensure that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. All independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic, professional qualifications or related financial management
experience. None of the independent non-executive Directors held any other
offices in the Company or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of
the Company. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence, and the
Company considers such Directors to be independent in accordance with the
criteria set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
which sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board. Details of this policy
is disclosed as below.

1. Purpose

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board.

2. \Vision

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

3. Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skill and
know-how. All Board appointments will be based on merit, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity to the Board.

4, Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and
know-how.

5. Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the Board
annually in the corporate governance report and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.

6. Review of the Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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Disclosure of the Board Diversity Policy

A Summary of the Board Diversity Policy together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in
the Company'’s annual corporate governance report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”’) which
sets out the approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment and re-appointment of the Directors. Details of the
Nomination Policy is disclosed as below.

1

Purpose

1.1

The Nomination Policy aims to set out the approach to guide the
Nomination Committee in relation to the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of the Directors.

1.2 The Nomination Policy aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's
business.

Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
to criteria including but not limited to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(@)

Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills
and know-how;

Sufficient time to effectively carry out duties; service on other
listed and non-listed companies should be limited to a reasonable

number;

Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries the Company’s business is involved in;

Independence;
Reputation for integrity;
Potential contributions to be brought to the Board; and

Commitment to enhance and maximize shareholders’ value.
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3  Re-election of Director at general meeting

3.1 The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
retiring Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving due
consideration to the Criteria including but not limited to:

(@) the overall contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring Director including his or her attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and
the level of participation and performance on the Board;
and

(b)  whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
Criteria.

32 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.

4 Nomination process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

(a) The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus
the search effort;

(b)  The Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from an independent agency firm and proposals from
shareholders of the Company with due consideration given to
the Criteria;

(@} The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third-party
reference checks;

(d) Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

(e) The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed

appointment; and

) The Board will have the final authority on determining the
selection of nominees.
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Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will assess and report annually, in the
Company's Corporate Governance Report, on the composition of the
Board, and launch a formal process to monitor the implementation of
the Nomination Policy as appropriate.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will launch a formal process to review the
Nomination Policy periodically to ensure that it is transparent and fair,
remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects the current
regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practice. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

Disclosure of the Nomination Policy

7.1 A summary of the Nomination Policy including the nomination
procedures and the process and Criteria adopted by the
Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the year will be disclosed in the Company’s
annual corporate governance report.

7.2 In the circular to shareholders for proposing a candidate as an
independent non-executive Director, it should also set out:

the process used for identifying the candidate and why
the Board believes the candidate should be elected and
the reason why it considers the candidate to be
independent;

if the proposed independent non-executive Director will
be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, the reason the Board believes the candidate
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the Board;

the perspectives, skills and experience that the candidate
can bring to the Board; and

how the candidate can contribute to the diversity of the
Board.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 14 September 2017 and the Company has signed letters of
appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors on 14
September 2017 and with the non-executive Director on 10 August 2018. The
service contracts with the executive Directors are for an initial fixed term of
three years and the letter of appointment with each of the independent non-
executive Directors are for an initial fixed term of one year, all commencing from
the Listing Date. The letter of appointment with the non-executive Director is
for an initial term of one year commencing on 10 August 2018. The service
contracts and letters of appointment are subject to termination in accordance
with their respective terms. The Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and the applicable GEM Listing Rules.

According to Article 108 of the amended and restated articles of association of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation at every annual general meeting of the Company, provided
that every Director shall retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-
election at annual general meeting at least once every three years. Article 112 of
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company provides that
Directors who are appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting after their appointment, and are subject to
re-election by shareholders of the Company.

Three Directors will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 9 August 2019. The three retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, separate ordinary

resolutions will be put forward to the shareholders of the Company in relation
to the proposed re-election of the three retiring Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample continuing
professional development for the Directors for a sound and effective internal
control system and corporate governance. In this regard, the Group has always
encouraged the Directors to attend relevant training courses to receive the
latest news and knowledge regarding corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has provided and all
Directors have attended training courses on the updates of the GEM Listing
Rules concerning good corporate governance practices. The Company will, if
necessary, provide timely and regular training to the Directors to ensure that
they keep abreast with the current requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference, which are
posted on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company’s website at www.nobleengineering.com.hk. All the Board
committees responsibly report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting meetings of Board
committees follow in line with, so far as practicable, those of the Board meetings
set out above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expense.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the CG Code which include developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of Directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code provision in the CG Code and disclosures in this
report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September 2017. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Chung Lai Ling, an
independent non-executive Director, and other members include Mr. Tang Chi
Wai, an independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen, an
executive Director. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee has been charged with the responsibility of
making recommendations to the Board on the appropriate policy and structures
for all aspects of Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration
packages and emoluments of Directors and senior management and
considered that they are fair and reasonable during the year ended 31 March
2019. No Director or any of his or her associates is involved in deciding his or her
own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 September 2017. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Tse Chun Yuen, the chairman
and executive Director, and other members include Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji
and Ms. Chung Lai Ling, both independent non-executive Directors. The written
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the website of
the Stock Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review and assess the
composition of the Board and independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
Directors of the Company. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee considers the merit of the candidates against
objective criteria and with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity is considered from a
number of perspectives in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy. The
Nomination Committee will also take into account factors relating to the
Company's own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 29 September 2017. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Tang Chi Wai, an independent non-executive
Director, and other members include Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji and Ms. Chung
Lai Ling, both independent non-executive Directors. The written terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and on the Company's website.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules in that at
least one of the members of the Audit Committee (which must comprise a
minimum of three members and must be chaired by an independent non-
executive Director) is an independent non-executive Director who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting related financial
management expertise.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information and reporting process, internal control procedures and risk
management system, audit plan and relationship with external auditors and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee held four meetings
to review and comment on the Company’s 2018 annual results, 2018 interim
results and quarterly results as well as the Company’s internal control
procedures and risk management system.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 comply with applicable accounting standards, GEM
Listing Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly for considering, reviewing and/or approving matters
relating to, among others, the financial and operating performance, as well as
the overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings are held
when significant events or important issues are required to be discussed and
resolved.
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Details of all Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Board
Meeting

2e3

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen AIRR L L
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen RS T E
Ms. Tse Ming Hei astEz+t

(R=ZZ-/\FAATHED)

(resigned with effect on
10 September 2018)

Non-executive Director FHiTEE

Mr. Chan Wai Lung BRIZEESLE
(appointed with effect on (RZZ-NENATH
10 August 2018) BEE)

Independent non-executive Directors BUINITEE

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji BN TE

Ms. Chung Lai Ling EERTL

Mr. Tang Chi Wai BEELEE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) assists the
Board by ensuring that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters.

The Company has appointed Mr. Tsoi Chi Hei as its Company Secretary. The
biography of Mr. Tsoi is set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Mr. Tsoi undertook no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed as the external
auditors of the Company. The fee paid and payable in respect of audit services
amounted to HK$ 1,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019.

No non-audit services fee was paid or payable for the year ended 31 March
2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders” meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration
and voting. All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website after
the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition
of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company or by such shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionists”) (as the case may be) pursuant to Article 64 of the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting and must be signed by
the Requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in such article for convening
an extraordinary general meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals with
general meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

To put forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for overseeing
the Company’s internal control, financial control and risk management system
and shall monitor its effectiveness on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems (particularly
concerning the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions) has been conducted by the Board and is
conducted at least annually.

Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against material errors, losses or fraud,
the Company has established risk management procedures which comprise the
following steps:

Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could affect the
achievement of goals of the Group;

Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk according to its
likely impact and the likelihood of occurrence;

Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to mitigate the risks.

Risk identification and assessment is performed or updated annually, and the
results of risk assessment, evaluation and mitigation of each function or
operation is documented in the risk registry of the Company to communicate
to the Board and management for reviews.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems are, however,
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions has been
carried out by an independent consultancy company with staff in possession of
relevant expertise to conduct an independent review.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report issued by the
independent consultancy company and the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 and
considered that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the internal control
review report and reviews performed by the Audit Committee and concurred
the same.

Under Code Provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company should have an
internal audit function. The Company has no internal audit function because the
Company has maintained an internal control system and its implementation has
been considered effective by the Audit Committee and the Board. In addition,
the Audit Committee has communicated with external auditors of the Company
to understand if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the
Company will review the need for one on an annual basis.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has
adopted a code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors in accordance with Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Other
employees of the Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company are also subject to dealing restrictions. The Group has strictly
prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside information or any use of
such information for the advantage of any individual. Inside information and
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules will be announced on the respective websites of Stock Exchange and the
Company in due course.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with the
objective of ensuring that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate with
shareholders as follows:

Corporate communications such as annual reports, quarterly reports,
interim reports and circulars are issued in printed form and are available
on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company's website at www.nobleengineering.com.hk;

ii. Periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company;

iii. Corporate information is made available on the Company’s website;

iv. Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the Directors
and senior management; and

V. The Hong Kong share registrar of the Company provides services to the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment and
related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential investors. It
welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquires to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Since the Listing Date, there has been no change to the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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INTRODUCTION

Noble Engineering Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”, “we" or
“our”) collectively have more than 35 years of experience in undertaking wet
trade works in Hong Kong. We are committed to providing the best services we
can offer to our customers.

As a leader in the wet trades industry, staff safety, works quality control and
environmental management are our paramount concerns. Our management
system is certified under OHSAS 18001:2007 for occupational health and safety,
ISO 9001:2008 for quality management, and ISO 14001:2004 for environmental
management by the International Organisation for Standardisation (1SO).

Comprehensive remuneration and welfare packages are offered to retain and
nurture our staff. We also extend our care to the broader society by making
various donations to charities and industry associations.

We would like to present in detail below our efforts in fulfilling our corporate
social responsibility in (1) Environmental and (Il) Social aspects for the year ended
31 March 2019 (the “review period”).

l.  ENVIRONMENTAL

1.1 Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality
Policy
For the applicable ISO certifications of our Group, we set up a
“Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality Policy”. The policy sets
out the following principles:

- to ensure the Group is in compliance with applicable
standards , legal and other requirements and to be mindful
of continual improvement and ultimate target in having
zero accident;

- to employ reasonable resources to achieve the objectives
and targets relevant to continual improvement;

- to review the effectiveness of the integrated management
system continuously;

- to ensure effective communication among staff, customers
and interested parties;

~ to advance engineering technology and idea;
- to acquire products and services to professional standards,
to minimize environmental impact and prevent injury or

ill-health; and

= to enhance company and staff competence and efficiency
in related works.
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| . E NVI RO N M E NTA |_ (Continued)

1.1

Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality
Policy (Continued)

Specifically, we devised areas of concern and standard procedures
for the following:

- Air pollution control: ensure strict compliance with the
Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311) in areas
including “construction dust” and “open burning”.

Procedures are set up to mitigate and control dust or air
pollutants emission. The procedures cover areas relevant
to storing, handling and transporting construction
materials, using tools and vehicles, and using eco-friendly
fuel.

- Waste control: ensure strict compliance with the Waste
Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap.
354Q) in the handling of “general waste”, “construction
waste” and “chemical waste”.

Procedures are set up for handling and disposing wastes,
setting up and maintaining waste storage conditions, and
regulating protective gear for personnel handling different
types of wastes.

- Noise pollution control: ensure strict compliance with
the Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400) in terms of
“construction time regulation” and “construction noise
mitigation and control”.

Procedures are set up to regulate the allowable time and
the specific types of equipment for conducting percussive
piling works. Measures to mitigate the impact of noise
pollution such as choosing tools that would emit less
noise, scheduling noisy works to be further away from
residential areas, schools and hospitals, and installing noise
shield around equipment that is expected to emit a lot of
noise.

- Water pollution control: ensure strict compliance with
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)
concerning sewage that would result from concrete works,
vehicle cleaning, other construction procedures, and site
canteen and toilet facilities.

Procedures are set up to regulate the discharge of waste
water into designated waste water discharge point.
Measures to prevent leakage of waste water into non-
designated discharge point are instructed to foremen to
control the impact of waste water to the neighbouring
communities.
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|. ENVI RON M ENTAL (Continued)

1.2 Greenhouse gas (“GHG"”) emissions

We are glad to report that, due to the nature of our trade
requiring zero usage of heavy machineries, our operations create
very few emissions.

In the review period, we did not use any gas and therefore have
no relevant GHG emissions to report. We also did not produce

any hazardous wastes from our operations.

The following presents our GHG emissions for the review period:

GHG emissions from use of vehicles:

E% ij'!% (4#)

1.2

BERE(RERE D HRK
REBMARE  ARAERTETTER
RERERZMEE  NEBEBELEELDE
PHBERE ©

MEBESE - NEEI SR EARE  ®
BASRBBAEREHEN - HPEZES
TMEE E R B ZRER -

LATR 2 5172 ] B 2R 3 P9 100 = RBS HE G
W

ERREEENRERBIN

Aspects 1.1 Unit: gram
BE1.1 Biy:®
Nitrogen oxides gram
RELY )

Sulphur oxides gram
ety =
Respiratory suspended particles gram

P RETRLT )

GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources:

3,558.26 2,633.93
178.01 5335
261.99 193.93

BERBEREENRERBHER

Aspects 1.2 Unit: kg
1.2 Bi: TR
Scope 1

&=

Carbon dioxide kg

k=¥ |74 T
Methane kg

B ke T
Nitrous oxide kg
—&aft=R T

Indirect GHG emission:

Aspects 1.2

Unit: kg (CO, equivalent)

28,577.78 8,564.78

64.34 1928

4,148.02 1,243.16
BEREREHN

EE1.2 B : TR (ZELRER)
Scope 2

$0[E2

Indirect GHG Emissions kg

R = R HEA T

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019

14,944.86 15,629.67



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

|. ENVI RON M ENTAL (Continued)

1.3

Use of Resources

We strive to lower energy consumption, fully utilise resources,
and recycle wastes in daily office operations.

Our staff recycle used papers for daily printing, save up used
envelopes for internal communication or drafting, and would
prioritize using electronic communication means over printed
copies for daily operations. Recycling bins are placed beside
printers to encourage scrap paper recycling.

To reduce the use of foam lunch boxes, we encourage staff to
bring their own lunch boxes to work. They are also reminded to
set the temperature of the air conditioning at an eco-friendly level
of 25 degrees Celsius.

The following presents our direct electricity consumption for the
review period:

Direct energy consumption in total and intensity

Aspects 2.1

BE2.1

Electricity usage kWh
AEBE TR
Electricity usage intensity

REZE

| . i% i:%z, (4

1.3

kWh/no. of offices (inc HQ + site offices)
TFERE PWAZHE
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ll. SOCIAL

1.1

Employment and Labour Practices
Our people

Wet trades works are highly labour intensive. In view of this, the
Group pays due regard to setting its human resources and work
safety policies.

We offer remuneration packages to staff which are
commensurate with their positions, duties, qualifications and
experience to reward them for their contributions to our success.
Our executive directors who have vast experience in the industry
would directly participate in the budgeting process of
remuneration packages for the Group. This helps to ensure the
remuneration and welfare offered are at a competitive level and
can retain talents for the Group's development.
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1.1

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

To better monitor our staff's career development progress,
adequate appraisals are conducted. We would offer promotions
and salary increment as rewards to outstanding staff, while at the
same time we would counsel staff who require further
improvements in their performance. They are also welcome to
communicate their concerns with our management at their
respective appraisals.

Our management values equal opportunities at the workplace.
The Group fully complies with laws and regulations prohibiting
unfair discrimination, including the Sex Discrimination Ordinance
(Cap. 480), the Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602) and the
Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487). We build equality
in the workplace by a fair and just recruitment process in which
we would assess people based solely on their experience, skills
and qualifications. An applicant’s gender, religion, age or skin
colour would not in any degree affect his or her chance of being
recruited. The same principle applies to our staff appraisals and
counselling.

The Group has zero tolerance to using forced or child labour. As a
member of the construction industry, we are well aware of the
problem of illegal immigrants working at construction sites and
are fully against it. Our HR & Administration Department has
adopted stringent internal controls in the recruitment process to
mitigate the risk of hiring illegal immigrants.

We maintain high standards of business ethics and require our
employees to abide by the Group’s code of conduct as stated in
our staff handbook.

Protecting staff’s health and safety

In developing our business, we are also committed to protecting
our staff's health and safety.

Our OHSAS 18001:2007 certification is a recognition of our
compliance efforts with occupational health and safety standards.
To ensure effective oversight over safety related issues, the Group
sets up safety committees both at the corporate level and the
construction site level. Safety committee meetings are held on a
monthly basis with the executive Directors to set strategic
guidelines for implementation of our occupational health and
safety measures relating to our operation and to monitor the
effectiveness of our safety management measures.
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1.1

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Protecting staff’s health and safety (Continued)

At the construction site level, site safety committees are also
established on a project basis to implement on-site safety
measures including regular safety inspections to maintain safe
working environment, review of safety plan and update of risk
assessment for the works, review of safety incidents and follow up
of any unsafe practices.

We provide site safety induction briefing sessions for workers on
the first day of work and provide tool box training once a month
for workers on site, including subcontractors’ employees. Site
inspections are carried out at least once a week by our safety
supervisors to ensure strict compliance with the statutory
occupational health and safety laws, rules and regulations.

Effective promotion and communication of safety procedures are
maintained through, among others, establishing safety bulletin
and detailed record of accidents, holding regular internal and
external safety meetings, documenting safety measures and
issues identified for each construction project by preparing safety
reports and training records.

In the review period, we are glad that no fatalities occurred at
either our head office or construction sites. For lost days due to
work injuries, there were only 8 cases of work injuries which
resulted in man-day loss of 2,704 days.

Training and Development

Being aware that labour shortage and ageing problem among
the existing workforce have been the major concerns of the
construction industry in recent years, our executive Directors are
dedicated to train up ever more talent to contribute to the
construction industry. In the review period, the Group continued
to participate in the “Subcontractor Cooperative Training Scheme”
organised by the Construction Industry Council. We have
assigned competent staff who had passed professional skills tests
administered by the Vocational Training Council and the
Construction Industry Training Authority to be in charge of
training applicants to the scheme.

The other safety trainings we organised or sponsored include
safety meetings and training, continuing professional
development for the Group's registered safety officer, and training
courses for safety supervisors. The total number of hours trained
inclusive of these types of training were 237 hours.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
II.2 Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

Apart from regulating our employees on environmental aspects,
the Group is also concerned with its subcontractors’
environmental performance. This can be seen from its selection
process and performance assessment process on subcontractors.
During the selection of new subcontractors, key concerns would
be whether the subcontractor had obtained ISO certificates
relevant to environmental management, and whether the
subcontractor was involved in environmental litigations or
complaints in the past. Once engaged, assessment on
subcontractor’s performance over environmental aspects would
be conducted half yearly to ensure consistent environmental
performance.

Whenever we need to procure and source materials, we would
seek them through a fair and unbiased tender process. Selection
criteria include the price offered by the contractor, their
capabilities to meet our requirement in terms of product and
service quality, as well as service support.

Service pledge to our customer

The cornerstone to our success has been the trust we built
between ourselves and our customers. We have set up customer
communication channels, including headquarter hotline and
construction site representatives, for handling customer enquiries
and complaints. We pledge to resolve any enquiries and
complaints to the satisfaction of our customers and deliver the
best construction service we can offer.

Anti-Corruption

Over the years, we witnessed no suspected or actual bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering activities occurring within
the Group. We stand firmly by our anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices as stated in our internal manuals.
Acceptance of kickbacks, commissions or any forms of benefits
are strictly prohibited during any procurement, contract
negotiations or other business dealings.

The manuals also outline guidance over conflicts of interest,
intellectual property rights, privacy and information
confidentiality, bribery and corruption, and equal opportunities.

Gift policy in our internal manuals clearly states the required
process and procedure for handling and accepting gifts and
advantages.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

” SOCIAL (Continued)

1.3 Community Involvement

The following presents our donation to a charitable organisation
dedicated to help Hong Kong society:

Sik Sik Yuen

We extend our care to the community by our donations to Sik Sik
Yuen, a religious charitable organization. The organisation
pledges to provide education services, social services for the
elderly, and medical services. We hope our donations can help in
promoting these charity services and help the needy.

FUTURE APPROACH TOWARDS
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

In the future, we will:

Continue our efforts in environmental protection and stringent
monitoring of subcontractor's environmental performance;

Uphold our high standards in occupational health and safety and ensure
our people can enjoy a fruitful career path with us; and

Nurture more and more industry professionals and youth to contribute
to Hong Kong society.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of wet trade works services. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019, which
includes a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
an analysis using financial key performance indicators of the Group’s business,
particulars of important events affecting the Group, an indication of likely future
developments in the Group's business, and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performance and the relationships with its
stakeholders, can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The review
forms part of this directors’ report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy"). Details of the
Dividend Policy is disclosed as below.

The Company adopts a general dividend policy that aims to provide
shareholders of the Company out of the Group's profit attributable to
shareholders in any financial year, subject to the criteria set out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined at the
discretion of the Board and subject to all applicable requirements (including
without limitation restrictions on dividend declaration and payment) under
Cayman Islands law and the amended and restated memorandum and articles

of association of the Company.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter
alia:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
shareholders’ interests;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of
the other members of the Group;

the level of the Group’s debt to equity ratio, return on equity and
financial covenants to which the Group is subject;

possible effect on the Group's creditworthiness;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders;
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the Group's expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans;

liquidity position and future commitments at the time of declaration of
dividend;

taxation considerations;
statutory and regulatory restrictions;
general business conditions and strategies;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company; and

other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any, with respect to the
Company’s shares on a per share basis.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the form of shares subject
to and in accordance with the procedures set out in the Company’s amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association.

Except for interim dividend, any dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of shareholders at the general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board may from
time to time pay to the shareholders such interim dividends as appear to the
Directors to be justified by the profits of the Company available for distribution.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time, and this Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.

Pursuant to provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company should disclose the
policy on payment of dividend in the annual report.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
12 April 2017. The companies now comprising the Group underwent a
corporate reorganisation (the “Reorganisation’) to rationalise the structure of
the Group in preparation for the listing of the shares of the Company on GEM of
the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company became the
holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Further details
of the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “History, Development
and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The shares of the Company were listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange by way of public offer on 29 September 2017.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
this report. The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 March
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of financial position and note 30
to the consolidated financial statements respectively. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting is scheduled to be held on 9 August
2019 (the "AGM"). For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 6 August 2019 to 9
August 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the AGM, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, Room 21038, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 August 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last four
financial years is set out on page 124 in this report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately HK$1,500 (2018: approximately HK$348,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year ended 31
March 2019, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 23 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 14 September
2017 (the "Scheme”). The terms of the Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. A summary of the particulars
of the Scheme as required under Rule 23.09 of the GEM Listing Rules is set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of these
related party transactions constitutes connected transactions that need to be
disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company's reserves available for distribution to owners
amounted to approximately HK$37.0 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of the Group's aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately 75.1%,
while the percentage of the Group's total revenue attributable to the five largest
customers in aggregate was approximately 97.0%.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group's largest supplier was approximately 5.5% of the total direct costs
paid for the period, while the percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest subcontractors and suppliers accounted for approximately
19.2% of the total direct costs paid.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (Chief executive officer)
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (resigned with effect on 10 September 2018)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Wai Lung (appointed with effect on 10 August 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji
Ms. Chung Lai Ling
Mr. Tang Chi Wai

In accordance with the amended and restated articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation and every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors
may, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Any Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in the three
years preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation at such
annual general meeting.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
of the Company, the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices.

The Company has arranged liability insurance for Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 12 to 15 of this report.
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EMOLUMENT OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s remuneration policy comprises primarily a fixed component (in
the form of a base salary) and a variable component (which includes
discretionary bonus and other merit-based payments), taking into account
other factors such as their experience, level of responsibility, individual
performance, the profitability of our Group and general market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once each year to discuss
remuneration related matters (including the remuneration of Directors and
senior management) and review the remuneration policy of the Group. It has
been decided that Remuneration Committee would determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Particulars of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Save as to the related party transactions disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
March 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section "Directors’ Report — RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” above, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of
significance with the Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by the Company’s controlling shareholders or their
subsidiaries, during the year ended 31 March 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service agreements (for executive Directors) and letters of
appointment (for the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors) with the Company entered into by each of the Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole and any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As confirmed by the Group's compliance adviser, Kingsway Capital Limited (the
"Compliance Adviser”"), save as to the compliance adviser agreement entered
into between the Company and the Compliance Adviser dated 16 May 2017
none of the Compliance Adviser or its directors, employees or associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in the Group or in the
share capital of any member of the Group which is required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholders or any of their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has engaged in any
business that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, or has any other conflict of interests with the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION”
below and the Scheme disclosures in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2019 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, or the Company’s
subsidiary or holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERFTETHAERAKRATHRME
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THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H ARAEETLFTBTHAE
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of AR RSB EEERE (EE R B HFRHAGRD(TFE
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part HREEGO]) EXVE) IR - HERD REEEFES
XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which were notified to the BEES LEEGOIEXVEE 7 8D BAME AR T K
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of B TR A B (B IERIEE H KB GROIHEX R A
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or NEFHRENERLAR)  HAELREERESLBE
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in BPIE3D2IEGFENS LM - HRIEGEM LRI 546
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the ESE7TRAEMNS AR RBRTHERE KRBT
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing

Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company REQAREBERNETR

Capacity/Nature of interest Total number of Shares Percentage of shareholding

519 HEEME IR 3 48 21 REFDL

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen Mo Interest in a controlled corporation; 350,000,000 58.33%
interest held jointly with another person

R 58 A e A E R
HEAM AT HRARAENER

Mr. Tse Chun Kuen Mot Interest in a controlled corporation; 350,000,000 58.33%
interest held jointly with another person

BHRE s S AEE
HEMA T HFARENEE

Note: Land Noble Holdings Limited (‘Land Noble") is beneficially owned as to 50% by Mizr . SHIZRAER AR ([EH]) 5 BB H R L4 R Hke &

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen and 50% by Mr. Tse Chun Kuen. On 9 May 2017, Mr. Tse Chun EEREA 0% N50% R-ZE—+FRANA @ HIREL
Yuen and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen entered into the an acting in concert confirmation to HERERE AR —BITHHERE - AR RER(HESP
acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they are parties acting in BRE)VHEE—BITHALT(EERBTERTWE KA T
concert within the meaning of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers. By 8]) o RIEBZEHLAEIED - SRR LA RSHRE L EWER
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Chun Yuen and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen are deemed to be BREIEE 2R AR -

interested in the Shares held by Land Noble.

Long position in the ordinary shares of associated REBELIEZTERNGAE — Sit
corporation — Land Noble

Name of associated Number of

corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share(s) held Percentage of interest

FEEBEE B 54 Rt RO EE E@mADL
Mr. Tse Chun Yuen Land Noble Beneficial owner 1 50%
IR 5 & =i ERBEEA
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen Land Noble Beneficial owner 1 50%
AR S =i BERBEAA

MERIREEERARAE — 550 0t 45
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2019, the following persons
(other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity/Nature of interest

514 HEmRtE

Land Noble Beneficial owner
ki BERBEAA
Ms. Or So Lan et Interest of spouse

IR B2 WD f e

Ms. Yapp Ngi Yang M2 Interest of spouse

BEgat We [iRX=t e

Notes:

1. Ms. Or So Lan is the spouse of Mr. Tse Chun Yuen. She is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all Shares in which Mr. Tse Chun Yuen is interested in for the purposes
of the SFO.

2. Ms. Yapp Ngi Yang is the spouse of Mr. Tse Chun Kuen. She is deemed, or taken to

be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Tse Chun Kuen is interested in for the
purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors,
no other persons, other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION" above,
had any interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Percentage of

Number of share(s) held interest in our Company

FEROEE EARAREEEDL
350,000,000 5833%
350,000,000 58.33%
350,000,000 5833%

Wi

I AEERTAMERAEOES. HL - RESREEE
PITIE « LR AR B R e B R IR
i -

2, EBEYRLRHIREEENRE - Bt stESF BT K
PIME BRI HAR AR WIR K EEA B %

s -
BEXHBEBEN R-B-AE=A=1+—0 HESF

FrEl s B AL (EERARABEZTHABERI - L
BHRN EX [EEREETHRABRARR B HEMBRE
EE R - HEERERD REEENER AR ] — &) BER
AR AR SRR 0 h BE B AR IR R 5 R E R DI xv
BB 2 B3 ) BB G ARRA R A R X PR B R AR
SABLNARAREBEES LB HRIIF B GRFENE
M AR AR TR R o



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

In order to avoid any possible future competition between the Group and the
controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling Shareholder’), Mr.
Tse Chun Yuen, Mr. Tse Chun Kuen and Land Noble (each a “Covenantor” and
collectively the “Covenantors’) have entered into the deed of non-competition
(the “Deed of Non-competition”) with the Company (for itself and for the
benefit of each other member of the Group) on 14 September 2017. Pursuant to
the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and
unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for itself and as trustee of its
subsidiaries) that, during the period that the Deed of Non-competition remains
effective, he/it shall not, and shall procure that his/its associates (other than any
member of the Group) not to develop, acquire, invest in, participate in, carry on
or be engaged, concerned or interested or otherwise be involved, whether
directly or indirectly, in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the existing business activity of any member of the Group.

Each of the Covenantors further undertakes that if any of he/it or his/its close
associates other than any member of the Group is offered or becomes aware of
any business opportunity which may compete with the business of the Group,
he/it shall (@and he/it shall procure his/its associates to) notify the Group in
writing and the Group shall have a right of first refusal to take up such business
opportunity. The Group shall, within 6 months after receipt of the written notice
(or such longer period if the Group is required to complete any approval
procedures as set out under the GEM Listing Rules from time to time), notify the
Covenantor(s) whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal or not.

The Group shall only exercise the right of first refusal upon the approval of all
the independent non-executive Directors (who do not have any interest in such
opportunity). The relevant Covenantor(s) and the other conflicting Directors (if
any) shall abstain from participating in and voting at and shall not be counted
as quorum at all meetings of the Board where there is a conflict of interest or
potential conflict of interest including but not limited to the relevant meeting of
the independent non-executive Directors for considering whether or not to
exercise the right of first refusal.

Each of the Covenantors also gave certain non-competition undertakings under
the Deed of Non-competition as set out in the paragraph headed
“RELATIONSHIP WITH OUR CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS — DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION" in the Prospectus.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had not received any
information in writing from any of the Controlling Shareholders in respect of any
new business opportunity which competed or might compete with the existing
and future business of the Group which were offered to or came to be the
knowledge of the Controlling Shareholders or their associates (other than any
member of the Group), and the Company has received an annual written
confirmation from each Controlling Shareholder of the Company in respect of
him/it and his/its associates in compliance with the Deed of Non-competition.
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The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and were satisfied
that each of the Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Deed of Non-
competition.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 29 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly available to
the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm
that the Company maintained the public float as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no equity-linked agreement entered
into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors annual written confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2019 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen
Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noble Engineering
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 123, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUD'T MATTE RS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit

Key Audit Matter Matter

Accounting for construction contract revenue
Refer to Notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the revenue -
and profit recognition of
contracting service as a key
audit matter due to
significant management
judgements and estimation -«
are required in the
determination of the total
outcome of the contracting
service contracts as well as
the stage of completion of -
contracting service.

Reviewing the contract sum and
budgeted costs to respective signed
contracts and budgets prepared by
management.

Understanding from management about
how the budgets were prepared and the
respective stage of completion were
determined.

Reviewing the reasonableness of key
judgements inherent in the budgets.

Obtaining the certificates issued by
customers to evaluate the reasonableness
of stage of completion as at year end.

Assessing the reliability of the budgets by
comparing the actual outcome against
management’s estimation of completed
contracts on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
todo so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’

report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

melEmREMEE RS

Fortheyearended 31 March2019 B2 =F—hF=H=+—HILFE

2019 2018
S N TN

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# s

Revenue Wz 5 364,165 408,944
Direct costs BEEER (334,328) (366,545)
Gross profit EF 29,837 42,399
Other income and gain Habug A Kzt 6 605 5392
Administrative and other operating expenses TREEMEERE (15,969) (28,909)
Finance costs & AR 10 (18) (215)
Profit before income tax R P 4S54 A1 g A 7 14,455 18,667
Income tax expense BB 1 (2,525) (5/426)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year A</ &1 A A B £ X% 7

attributable to owners of the Company e e 11,930 13,241
Earnings per share attributable to owners RRFHEE NEEGRET

of the Company

— Basic and diluted earnings per share — EREAREERR 12 HK$0.02 HK$0.03
Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial IR EFFERERE IR 135 -
statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial BERTHIBIREBA AR A SRR B E D ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment

Current assets

Contract assets

Gross amounts due from customers for contract work
Trade and other receivables

Bank balances

Restricted cash

Current income tax recoverable

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Gross amounts due to customers for contract work

Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

e IR R

Asat31March2019 RZ-FE—NF=HA=+—H

2019
—E—-hfF
HK$’000
FHET
EE
ERBEE
T 5 B 5% s 16 5,722 3,379
REBEE
EHEE 17 58,898 -
EREFHNE A TIEHIERSE 18 = 19,074
B 5 & HAth el kI8 19 22,744 63,732
RITHERR 20 53,849 62,915
ZIRHIRE 21 = 820
A U [B] BN P15 F 907 -
136,398 146,541
HWEE 142,120 149,920
R
RAREE AEERER
BARHE
(&N 22 6,000 6,000
ek 23 121,068 108,831
ERBE 127,068 114,831
a8E
FRBEE
EERIESE 25 348 402
REBE
ﬁﬁ@ﬁmémlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 18 = 3,515
B 5 R EAFENRE 26 14,704 29,096
BNEAFE R aE - 2,076
14,704 34,687
mars 15,052 35,089
BEZREE 142,120 149,920
MEBEEFE 121,694 111,854
BEERLBAE 127,416 115,233

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BAMKBEAR - E—NFENA-THAEESSHERRET

by the board of directors on 25 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: B YR TEEREZETCRS
Mr. Tse Chun Yuen Mr. Tse Chun Kuen

HARR T & HIREZ &

Director Director

EE EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial BEBT OB LB AR A B SRR MK 2B ©

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BEIR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE ==&

== N 7 Q\—
L\ mom
e

Balance as at 1 April 2017

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Reorganisation

Shares issued pursuant to the
capitalisation issue

Share issued pursuant to the
share offer

Share issuance costs

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Balance as at 1 April 2018
(as originally stated)

Effect arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15
(Note 2)

Effect arising from initial

application of HKFRS 9
(Note 2)

Balance as at 1 April 2018
(as restated)

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2019

R-Z-tFNA-B&ER
FRET R KSR

B4
REEMMEBTETHR,

R HERTTHIRD
BOETER

R-B-N\F=A=1-H
2

RZZ—\GFHA—H&H
(IREMES)

w%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ 28|
FISHAEENTE
WE2>

MNicERE BT BIREER

FORMEANTE
(BftzE2)

RZE—-\FNA—B&#H#
(1 E5))

FREMNREEKEER

R-E-hAE=A=+—-H
E2S

statement of financial position.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

~NF=ZA=F—HILFE

Share
capital

Share
premium
A RE
HK$'000

FAT
(Note 23)

Other
reserve
Hiufd e
HK$'000
FH
(Note 23)

23)

Retained
earnings
BEEFEF
HK$'000
THT

Total
act
HK$'000
BT

10,000 - - 31,603 41,603
- - - 13,241 13,241
(10,000) - 10,000 - -
4,500 (4,500) - - -
500 69,000 - - 70,500
- (10,513) - - (10513)
6,000 53,987% 10,000 44,844% 114,831
6,000 53,987 10,000 44,844 114,831
- - - 516 516
_ - - (209) (209)
6,000 53,987 10,000 45,151 115,138
- - - 11,930 11,930
6,000 53,987* 10,000* 57,081* 127,068
ZERBEFPEEGAMBMRARANGEAREEY

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately
HK$121,068,000 (2018: approximately HK$108,831,000) in the consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EE%/)ILE%‘:Z

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE =%

n‘/__]_\

2019
—g-nE

HK$'000

—NF=ZA=F—HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Provision for loss allowance on financial assets
and contract assets
Reversal of loss allowance on financial assets
and contract assets

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Increase in contract assets

Decrease in gross amounts due from customers
for contract work

Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables

Decrease/(Increase) in restricted cash

Decrease in gross amounts due to customers for
contract work

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchases of plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Decrease in amounts due to directors
Increase in pledge bank deposits
Proceeds from share offer

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

REFHRERE
B TS AT A
SR

MR N s AT E

HBUA

FEFX

SRR N i

TRHEENANEERBRE

BROeREENANEERRREE

EEESHBAINKCEET

BHIEEEN
FEU R P )& R TR AR ER >

B 5 REM IR, (&)
ZREBHD,(EM)
ENEFPHA K TIEFRIBARRD

B 5 A BN R

BER(BA)/EENRE
EEIHIA

REEER(BA) B
HREFHE

R ENS)
BEmE LR
HEmE MEREERIEA

RETHFEE(BAH)

MEZHRERE
ENFE

e E = FRIR R A
BRI SIS
Rt B & PSR

BMEFHA(BA), EENRETIE

RERRESEY (BL) 1EEE

FNRERREEEY

FRESRREEEY

MERIREEZRERATF

27
27

20

BEF HO P FERE R A SR &

THET

14,455 18,667
1,409 836
(448) (228)
18 215
- @)
1,723 2,513
(151) (5,109)
17,006 16,893
(7,628) -
= 9,511
594 (13,060)
820 (740)
- (4,164)
(14,392) (52)
(3,600) 8,388
(5,640) (5,940)
(9,240) 2,448
444 226
(252) (2,243)
= 1
192 (2,016)
(18) (215)
= (20,432)
(5,088) =
- 59,987
(5,106) 39,340
(14,154) 39,772
62,915 23,143
48,761 62,915
B 3Rk MR P 5

L R . oY



58

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE ==&

B I ERR M

~NF=ZA=F—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as to the “Group”) is principally engaged in
provision of wet trades works services.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 April 2017
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 29 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, its parent and ultimate holding company
is Land Noble Holdings Limited (‘Land Noble"), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and owned as to 50% by Mr. Tse
Chun Yuen (“Mr. Eric Tse") and 50% by Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (“Mr. CK
Tse").

The addresses of the registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business of the Company is Room 809, 8/F., Cheung Sha Wan
Plaza, Tower II, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

Prior to the corporate reorganisation undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“Reorganisation’), the group entities were under the control of Mr. Eric
Tse and Mr. CK Tse. Through the Reorganisation, the Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 6
September 2017. Accordingly, for the purpose of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, the Company has been
considered as the holding company of the companies comprising the
Group after the Reorganisation throughout the years presented. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the
Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity. The Group was under
the control of Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse prior to and after the
Reorganisation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if the
Company had been the holding company of the Group throughout the
years presented in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). The consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the years presented, which include the results, changes
in equity and cash flows of the companies comprising the Group after
the Reorganisation, have been prepared as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the years presented, or since their
respective dates of incorporation, where this is a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements set out in this
report have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except as otherwise stated in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies of
the Group. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time in the current year:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
and related amendments
As part of the Annual

Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 1
and HKAS 28

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based
Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

e IR R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR Y R

Fortheyearended 31 March2019 B2 =F—hF=H=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” ("HKFRS
15"

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 18 “Revenue”
("HKAS 18"), HKAS 11 "Construction Contracts” ("HKAS 11")
and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date
of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening retained
earnings and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and
the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from provision of wet
trades works services which arise from contracts with
customers. The accounting policies for recognition of
revenue from such contract works before and after
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 are described in
Notes 2.21 and 2.22 respectively. The changes in the
accounting policies due to the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1
April 2018 did not have impact on the amounts of revenue
and direct costs recognised as expense in respect of the
contract works carried out by the Group except as follows:

— Under HKAS 11, the Group recognised contract
costs incurred as expense based on the stage of
completion which was measured based on surveys
of work performed, whereas under HKFRS 15, all
contract costs incurred are recognised as expense
unless they meet all the criteria specified in HKFRS
15 for recognising costs incurred to fulfil a contract
as an asset.

Further, as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, gross
amounts due from or to customers for contract work are
reclassified as contract assets and contract liabilities
respectively. Further, retention monies receivables are
reclassified from trade and other receivables to contract
assets as these retention monies receivables do not
represent the Group’s right to consideration from its
customers that is unconditional. Under HKFRS 15, a right
to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

As mentioned above, the Group has adopted the
cumulative effect transition method for transition to HKFRS
15. With such a method being adopted, the Group is
required to make an additional disclosure that shows how
the amount of each financial line item is affected in the
current year by the application of HKFRS 15 as compared
to those superseded standards including HKAS 11, HKAS
18 and the related interpretations. The table below only
show line items that are affected.

Current assets REBEE

Contract assets BREE

Gross amounts due from FBREFHAE#HTIE
customers for contract work RIBLREE

Trade and other receivables B 5 &k Hitn e kI8

Equity R

Reserves (Note) ot ()

Non-current liabilities EREBEE

Deferred tax liabilities BEFHIEAE

Current liabilities REBaE

Gross amounts due to customers ERTE P HA LI T2
for contract work SRIBMEEE

Current income tax liabilities BHAFTIS BB E

Note: As mentioned above, the Group has adopted the
cumulative effect transition method for transition to HKFRS
15. With such a method being adopted, the Group is
required to make an additional disclosure that shows how
the amount of each financial statement line item is
affected in the current year by the application of HKFRS 15
as compared to those superseded standards including
HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and the related interpretations. Other
than the reclassifications of gross amounts due from
customers for contract works and retention monies
receivables to contract assets as described above, the
transition to HKFRS 15 did not have material effects on
other financial statement line items in the current year.

e IR R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF

2. ERE

SR o

2.1 wREEEE)
2.1.1 FEBIRWBIFET RASIETTER (45

Carrying amount
previously report
as at 31 March
2018

AT 2

19,074
63,732

108,831

402

3,515
2,076

RmE LI EIRELERNE 1558 ()
PG FE B 2B R 75 3 &5 SE R 2 15 3E /Y
TEME

Y e B REL A ZE
I L PRt - AEREEBEERE
MBREERB SRRARBETER
BOE o NERLL T - ARBEAED
BIMERE - WBRESMBHEERAEE
HEREB BmEENEISHEMAE
FE AEAEDANER(RERE
SEHERE 11 - BB AEAIF 18
SRR ) R o TRERTR
TEMNER -

Reclassification Carrying amount
and  under HKFRS 15
measurement asat 1 April 2018
R=Z—N\F

mA—H

BEBUBRE

BN E HERIFE 1558
RitE BTN HREE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHBT

51,440 51,440
(19,074) -
(35,246) 28,486
516 109,347
(13) 389
(3.515) -
132 2,208

MiE - W EXFrd - AEBERBEER
BUBREERE 15RRANBATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” ("HKFRS 9")

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 April
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” ("HKAS 39”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE =%

2.

B IR R R M

—NF=ZA=F—HILFE

w—_l_\

SR HRBE s

2.1 wREEEE)

2.1.1

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position
The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement (including impairment) of financial assets,
contract assets and deferred tax assets which are subject
to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial
application as at 1 April 2018.

*

Original
measurement
category under
HKAS 39
BEEEL
E39HKBETRE
HEDE

Financial assets and
contract assets

ERMEERGNEE

Contract assets NA

BHAE TiEA

Trade and other receivables Loan and receivables
B 5 REMEKTR ERREKFE
Bank balances Loan and receivables
BRITH R EFRERFE
Restricted cash Loan and receivables
ZREFES ERRERFE

Recognition of deferred tax assets

BREEHEEE

New measurement
category under HKFRS 9

BAGTER ERARIMEE

BARNBREENF
BN EIE

amount under

AEBERABIHTT RABNEZTER] ()

RmE LU B HEERIZE o5k ()
P4 &8 B T 30 5 2RI 9 St Y 77
ane

W AMBRAREENTZE
TERETR-F-/N\FEOA—-BAE
RERXEBHMBMSLENEIRET
BHEEBEBREEESERF MR
RRONEBMEE  ANEENMRLENIE
BEMDBLFE(BFERE) -

Additional loss
allowance
recognised and
the respective
deferred tax
impact

Original
carrying New carrying
amount under
HKFRS 9
ERRBHE
ERFIHAT

HKAS 39

F39HET RERFHEL
REREE BE & HREE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TET e BT

NA 51,440* (205) 51,235
A
Financial assets at amortised cost 28,486% (45) 28441
RERRATIRNERHEE
Financial assets at amortised cost 62915 - 62915
RBHERASRN S REE
Financial assets at amortised cost 820 - 820
RARRATRNERHEE

(250)

41
(209)

Those amounts are after the adjustments from the

application of HKFRS 15.

MERIREEZRAERAT

* EELBECREAR BT BIRE LR
FISSREL A -

—NWEFER

63



64

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ST HEBRE @)
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 2.1.1 FEBRABIFTRAEISETER (&)

(Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which use a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the ECL, the
trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on individual risk assessment and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 general approach to
measure ECL on deposits and other receivables. The Group
has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at 12-month ECL (“12m ECL"), since
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition for deposits and other receivables. The
ECL for bank balances are insignificant because such assets
are placed in banks with good reputation and there has
been no recent history of default in relation to these banks.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance of
approximately HK$250,000, together with the recognition
of the corresponding deferred effects as deferred tax
assets of approximately HK$41,000, totaling approximately
HK$209,000 has been recognised against retained earnings
as at 1 April 2018. The additional loss allowance is charged
against the respective asset.

The additional impairment loss allowance upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9 as disclosed above resulted entirely
from a change in the measurement attribute of the loss
allowance relating to each financial asset and contract
assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. BERESFTHERE @
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE)

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 2.1.1 FEBERAHIFET RAZIEFTER (&

(Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(Continued)

All loss allowances for financial assets and contract assets
as at 31 March 2018 reconcile to the opening loss
allowance as at 1 April 2018 is as follows:

RmE LU B HEERIZE o5k ()
P4 &8 R T 3 5 R 9 St mY 77

EnE(E)

RZE-NF=ZR=T—H2HEER
EREENMABIERRE_T—N\F
MA—BEIBERBEERNT

Trade and other

Contract assets receivables Total
EZR
EHEE H {th & W g st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHIT T
(Note 17) (Note 19)
(BsE17) (HizE19)
Closing balance as at RZE—N\F=H
31 March 2018 =+ —HRERERR - 69 69
Amounts remeasured through & B F ¥R EE & F|
opening retained earnings BHTENTE 205 45 250
Opening balances as at R-ZEBE-NEMA—A
1 April 2018 W E R 205 114 319
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Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of
financial position had to be restated. The following table
shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line
item affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

2.

SEHRBE =

2.1 wREEEE)
2.1.1 FEFIRABIFET RASNEZTER] (42)

FEF BT B AT ETE RIS Wik & BT R
RELHZE

EEﬁAHjiELL$EEA*+BZﬁ%@§JU "
iz e MBIRARASES - TRERH

BEXFERAERNHE T ERE
FENAEBILRBIEENR -

66

31 March 2018 1 April 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
—E-N\F —E-N\F
=A=+—H BEMERE BERUERE MmA—H
(eFE%) ERIZE155 ZH|ZE 95 (BE %)
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
THET FHIT THIT THIT
Current assets REVEE
Contract assets BHEE - 51,440 (205) 51,235
Gross amounts due from FREFPHAHIE
customers for contract work ~ FRIBZA%E 19,074 (19,074) -
Trade and other receivables & 5 [ H b fE U 118 63,732 (35,246) (45) 28441
Equity e
Reserves — Retained earnings & — R & & F| 44,844 516 (209) 45151
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEEE 402 (13) (41) 348
Current liabilities REBEE
Gross amounts due to FEHE)E & HTE
customers for contract work ~ FRIH4E %8 3,515 (3,515) -
Current income tax liabilities Eﬂgﬁﬁﬁ BHasE 2,076 132 - 2,208
For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating MILEE T EERBEE T —HLE=A

activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
March 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 April 2018 as disclosed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERAR MIEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NTlNG POLIC'ES (Continued)

2.1

2.1.2 The Group has not early applied the following new and

Basis of preparation (Continued)

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRSs

Conceptual
Framework for
Financial
Reporting 2018

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2020.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020.

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'

Revised conceptual framework
for financial reporting®

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE =%

—NF=ZA=F—HILFE
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.2 The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective: (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” ("HKFRS 16”)

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangement and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. It distinguishes
leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Subject to
limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees. However,
the standard does not significantly change the accounting
of lessors.

Application of HKFRS 16 will result in the Group's
recognition of right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities in respect of many of the Group's lease
arrangements. These assets and liabilities are currently not
required to be recognised but certain relevant information
is disclosed as commitments to these consolidated
financial statements.

Total operating lease commitment of the Group as at 31
March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$569,000 (Note
28). The directors of the Group do not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant impact on the Group's
results but it is expected that certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipated that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs would have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. STHRBE @)

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MEBLAA

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

(a) Business combination

Except for the Reorganisation, the Group uses the
acquisition method of accounting to account for
business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquire and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

2.2.1 &
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTlNG POLIC'ES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

b) Transaction with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3

24

25

Merger accounting for common control
combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest. The
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the
date of the common control combination.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.

e IR R AR Y R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL

For the yearended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

~NF=ZA=F—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Plant and equipment

The plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives or lease term, where applicable,
as follows:

Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Machinery and equipment 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessors) are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain plant and equipment. Leases of plant
and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Leases (Continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

Financial instruments (before adoption of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

2.8.1 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “bank balances” and “restricted cash” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.8.2 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Con °d)

2.8 Financial instruments (before adoption of

HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)
2.8.2 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS

9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets

SR HRBE s

29 SRMTRA(R=-Z—N\FHNA—HBHEHKE
BUMBEREERE IR ZR) (&)
29.1 £HEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

(a) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, expect for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including debt instruments at amortised cost, trade and
other receivables, bank balances and restricted cash). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors credit-impaired and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

@)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. SITHERBE )

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

29 SRMTRA(R=-Z—N\FHNA—HBHEHKE
BUEREENFIR2RB) (E)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued) 2.9.1 ZHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) BREERE (&)
@  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) @) EERBEZIEME)

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or

BEHANEE  BERK
MRRERNEHALRE

technological environment of the debtor AIEFEEmBEREBEA
that results in a significant decrease in the BITHEBEEMNENKR
debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations. 8 TB&E ©

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low
risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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e TS ERAR MIEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(d)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

Nature of financial instruments;

Past-due status;

Aging of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS

9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(e) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset, if the part being
considered for derecognition meets one of the following
conditions: (i) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; or (i) the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset have
been transferred, the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or (iii)
the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to the eventual recipient
in an agreement that meets all the conditions of
derecognition of transfer of cash flows (“pass through”
requirements) and transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets
the criteria for derecognition, the difference between the
two amounts below is recognised in profit or loss:

the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred; and

the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. SITHERBE )

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS s 3 ;
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued) BB EERNEIRZE)(E)
2.9.2 Financial liabilities and equity 29.2 tHEEREZ
Classification as debt or equity SERER

29 EeRMTRA(R=-ZB-—N\ENA—HBHEHKE

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(@) Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issued costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

(b) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
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Derecognition of financial liabilities BUHMER M A &

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. BERETHERE @

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Con °d)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS 2.9
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. There are also arrangements that
do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the
related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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2.10 Gross amounts due from/to customers for 210 Bl ENEFNENIREIEAE (R

contract work (before adoption of HKFRS 15 on
1 April 2018)

A construction contract is defined in HKAS 11 as a contract
specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset or a
combination of assets that are closely interrelated or
interdependent in terms of their design, technology and
functions or their ultimate purpose or use.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, and the stage of completion are measured
based on surveys of work performed. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the
amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered
probable.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amounts due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for which
costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by
customers and retention are included within “trade and other
receivables”.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amounts due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for which
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses).

2.11 Trade and other receivables 2.11

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at their
transaction price as determined under HKFRS 15 and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts (if any).

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if the payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

e TS ERAR MIEE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2.

2.12

2.14

2.16

SEHRBE s

ReRREEEY

NEARERERN BeRhBESEEYE
IEFEERES - RITEHGER - HAFEEHEA
ABZEAKNANEEHS REBMERE RIBIT
BEX(nA) -

L&
TR B ER -

HEITHER D RBREE R BB EMR A
OBRTIRIR DA 52 51| R PTS BRIRHYRIR ©

EZREMENRIE
BSRNFREREHEEBBIEFRAH-ER
BEEEMIREMEZINNES W8S R
EMEAFRIEHOZ A BTE—F AR (M
JEFEH%W BIA—RR 2 BEBERA%E)
EwoEaRBEaE: GASEAERDE

f& o

B 5 KEAMENFIRKN RN T ERR
HIR AR BRI SOR IR SHR A 8 -

BRIBARDEE BRIELAEEZHERK
HEFTBEZABENHREEZSRERE

B IR IR A A HIBRE A R X 5 A AT
R o ERER IR AT © PTSFAE (N
Bz Z Ak A) B mE (B A0 (] Z= RE A R B
MZERE KB N B R RER -

BERA

ET&‘ BENEE BRRAEREREE(E
VAR -BEFBEEAEELAERENKIH
ENEE)N—REFEBERE - MAZE
BENKRAN BEEEEARNELHZHERE
EMERSHERILE °

EREEREREAEREENTHAIERA
TERE PRI IR E WA - AR S ERER
LR EER AR o

A B EERAREL R IRR R -

MERIREEZRARAT - 550 08

83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences, arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of each reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
taxation liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans and pays
contributions to privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a detailed
formal plan to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of each reporting
period are discounted to present value.

(d) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of such obligation can
be made.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amounts have been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligations. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

2.21

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resource will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly
within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an
asset is recognised.

Revenue (before adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1
April 2018)

Revenue from provision of wet trades works services

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivables for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown after eliminating sales within
the Group.

Revenue from contract work is recognised based on the
percentage of completion of the contracts, provided that the
percentage of contract completion and the gross billing value of
contracting work can be measured reliably. The percentage of
completion of a contract is established by reference to the
construction works certified by the customer.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue from contracts with customers (after

adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018)

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
services. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a service (or a bundle of
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs; or

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct service.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue from contracts with customers (after
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in
the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable

consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment of
whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances during the

reporting period.

Revenue from provision of wet trades works services

(a) Recognition

The Group provides wet trades works (including tile laying,
brick laying, plastering, floor screeding and marble works)
under contracts with customers. Such contracts are
entered into before the services begin. Under the terms of
the contracts, the Group is contractually required to
perform the works at the customers’ specified sites such
that the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs.

Revenue is recognised progressively using output method
which recognises revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value to the customer of the
promised goods or services transferred to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract with the customer. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligations in
the contract is determined based on the value of
performance completed to date as a percentage of total
transaction price to depict the transfer of control of the
goods or services to the customer. The Group recognises
revenue over time only if it can reasonably measure its
progress toward complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. However, if the Group cannot reasonably
measure the outcome but expects to recover the costs
incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, then it
recognises revenue to the extent of the costs incurred. The
directors of the Company consider that output method
would faithfully depict the Group's performance towards
complete satisfaction of these performance obligations

under HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue from contracts with customers (after
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Revenue from provision of wet trades works services
(Continued)

(b)

(@)

Variable consideration

The Group considers both the terms of the contracts
entered into with its customers and its customary business
practices to determine the transaction prices for each of its
construction projects. The Group determines the
transaction price as the amount of consideration to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to the customer. When
estimating transaction prices for construction projects in
progress, the Group recognises that the amounts of
consideration would vary because of price discounts and
rebates, which are usually finalised and agreed with the
customers during the final certification stage of the
projects. Although such variability relating to the
consideration promised by the customers are not explicitly
stated in the contracts, the Group considers that the
customers have valid expectations arising from customary
business practices that the price concessions would be
given to the customers at the end of the construction
projects. Hence the estimates of variable consideration are
typically constrained to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group'’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

After adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, contract assets
are assessed for impairment using the same lifetime ECL
methodology as that for trade receivables, as described in
Note 2.9.1 for financial assets.

e IR R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF

2.

ERGTHHRBE @

222 REEFAENNKE(R=2—-N\FHTA
—BRAEBMBRELENE 15K 2K)
(#)
B TRIRH K (E)

b TRAE

AEESEERTRERRSERKE
BEERPIIVMHENGRAREERE
BER - AREBR 5 EETRETAD
SAEPERAEE RRRAEERER
MRESR - AAHEETIRERNRS
B - AEEERRES TS RERT
IREMmESR  KESEBTREAR
REBERREATPRENDE - BF
B PAERERBR A Z Y RN
WA AEERR - BRFEBEER
BRMASRHEN TI2IE B HERE
EPERERES - Bt - RERHEA
SRERRNTHEE R XL RERR
K RN RA NG BB TS
BEAED - A EREGFTEE K
SR

© BHEERRE

BRHEERARERAEECATFPE
7% B R 755 A ER (B 9 AR R (1) R PR 2
ff) - RRRBEEMMELEAE
SRHETTRERHE - AR - BKRFIRIEAR
REUWEAE R B IRIEET - BN R 20
R BN AR B (B o

BHEEEARBERE AT KERE
(SREHUWER L E) MAR TP BB RS
MELE -

SE—AHARNANAERANAE
EFBIEARR 27 -

MM FH 2 REERNM - R=F
—N\FHA—BERAEB B RE LR
Foik  ANEEEAEEHRUK
HeHRHEEEREAERE T AT
R A

MERIREEZRERATF

— =

“T-NFFERS

89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NTlNG POLIC'ES (Continued)

2.23 Interestincome

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks: cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank overdrafts. The Group's cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of the Hong Kong dollar prime rate arising from the
Group's Hong Kong dollar denominated bank overdrafts.

The Group currently does not have a formal interest rate
hedging policy in relation to cash flow and fair value
interest rate risks as the management considers that such
risks are insignificant to the Group. The management
monitors the Group's exposure on an ongoing basis and
will consider hedging the interest rate when the need
arises.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities as at the end of the financial reporting period, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates and the
directors of the Company consider that the cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk is insignificant to the Group.
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Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEKRE?

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 Mﬂ%ﬁl?ﬁlﬁi@%)
(b)  Creditrisk (b) FFEmE
Credit risk arises mainly from trade and other receivables, sERERFEEREE 5 KM EUGK

bank balances, restricted cash and contract assets. The
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at the reporting dates in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets and contract assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of bank balances and restricted cash are
limited because the counterparties are banks with sound
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Under HKAS 39

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade and other
receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers and counterparties. These evaluations focus
on the counterparty's financial position, past history of
making payments and take into account information
specific to the counterparty as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the counterparty
operates. Monitoring procedures have been implemented
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
balance at the end of the reporting period to ensure
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

Under HKFRS 9

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables and contract assets. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the Group has applied the
simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group considers the
probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout the reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

The Group uses four categories for those receivables and
contract assets which reflect their credit risk and how the
loss provision is determined for each of those categories.
These internal credit risk ratings are aligned to external
credit ratings.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE ==&

3.

~NF=ZA=F—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The following table shows the Group’s credit risk grading
framework:

Category

Group definition of category

bl HRN D BER

BEEREEL

3.1 Mﬂ%ﬁl?ﬁlﬂi@é}
(b) EEEE)

WRIFBE B R EHER|FE 958 ()

TRERASENEERBFRIER

Basis for recognition of ECL
BREHEEHFENESE
Trade receivables
and contract
assets
BZRWHRIER
EHEE

Other financial
assets

HttemEE

Performing

fEi7

Doubtful

RER

Default

EN

Write-off

34

For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
BRORRBESE VR ERUREERR I EAEZEINE I
EEERENEREE(BRE1ER)

For financial assets where there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit
impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

BV ERAREEREREZIEINE T B EEREN SR
BE(BAE2RR)

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)
TE—HN L EHEREEMTRIBASREETFTE
WEHR  SREETGALBREERE(BAEIHER)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

BRBRTERA LS B EMRE B A SEY EER

Lifetime ECL

HEHERER

Lifetime ECL — not

credit impaired

EHEMERER
— UEEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit impaired

2HRHMERER
— EERIE

Amount is written off

MIHRIA

12m ECL

REABESEE
g

Lifetime ECL — not
credit impaired

> HEMEEEE
— UEEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit impaired

2HEHERER
—EERE

Amount is written off

I RIA

B U @ IR

The Group applies individual assessment and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings to measure the expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9 as stated in below:

The expected credit loss rates applied in the individual
assessment are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
internal credit rating by reference to a study of other
corporates’ default and recovery data from international
credit rating agencies, and are adjusted for forward-
looking information (for example, the current and
forecasted economic growth rates in Hong Kong, which
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate) that is available without undue
costs or efforts. Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The expected credit loss rates applied in the provision
matrix are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit
risk and expected credit losses for contract assets and
trade and other receivables as at 31 March 2019 are set out
in Notes 17 and 19.

The Group made no write-off on trade and other
receivables and contract assets during the year ended 31
March 2019.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group has concentration of credit risk in trade and
other receivables and contract assets as there was one
customer (2018: one customer) which individually
contributed over 10% of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and contract assets. The aggregate amounts of
trade and other receivables and contract assets from this
customer amounted to 61.8% (2018: 23.9%) of the Group's
total trade and other receivables and contract assets as at
31 March 2019. This customer which is the Group's largest
customer whom there is no recent history of default and is
a company listed in Hong Kong and is part of a leading
well known conglomerate in Hong Kong. The Group has
categorised this customer as “Performing” and determined
its loss allowance based on lifetime ECL. For the detail on
the loss allowance please refer to Note 19.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a
large number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet their liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. Management
believes there is no significant liquidity risk as the Group
has sufficient financial resources to fund their operations.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest date the Group may be
required to pay.

e IR R AR Y R
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Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEKRE?

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HEEEE i (&)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) () HEELEE(E)

On demand or
within one
year

BHER A

Between one Between two
and two years and five years Total
—EmE

HK$'000
FHET

MEREF
HK$'000
THET

@it
HK$'000
T

—£R
HK$'000
THET

94

3.2

3.3

As at 31 March 2019 RZB—hF
=A=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMPERRIE 14,704 - - 14,704
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE—N\F
ZA=+—H

Trade and other payables B 5 N HEAMENZE 29,096 - - 29,096
Capital risk management 32 EXEKBER
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to AEEREREANNEIZEZRREAE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so R E KRS s NI EARFIRME R R
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, to BASBENBERIER  MIEAEELE
support the Group's stability and growth; to earn a margin FREBKERTSRBEFTOTE W4
commensurate with the level of business and market risks in the BRENERERIUREESKAE -
Group's operations and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BERBIAREREE ~EBJREARR
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return H%Hﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁx Eef MBRRFEES &
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, obtain new borrowings TERD c MEFHEEENKLEEENRK
or sell assets to reduce debt. &% -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This AEBNEEBERLE §*$ﬁ§¢ It b =
ratio is calculated as the total interest-bearing liabilities divided by RSB RBTERAERBETE -
the total equity.
The Group has no interest-bearing liabilities for the reporting RERE AEBWEFEAE QI E
dates, and which no gearing ratio was presented. 2HEEGRBLEX -
Fair value 3.3 AYE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial WHEEREMEERN FEIAENEIEETS
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on recurring BEERTHEENEREE

basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing model
based on discounted cashflow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets

The directors of the Group estimate the amount of loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and contract assets. The loss allowance amount is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit losses. The assessment of the credit risk of trade receivables
and contract assets involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
as the directors of the Group estimates the loss rates for debtors by using
forward-looking information. When the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or more than expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise accordingly. For details of
impairment assessment, please refer to Notes 17 and 19.

Stage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises its contract revenue according to the stage of
work performed to date of the individual contract of construction works
as a percentage of total contract value. Because of the nature of the
activity undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date when the activity is
completed usually fall into different accounting period and actual cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which could affect the revenue and profit recognised
in future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs and variation orders prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Management regularly reviews the progress of the
contracts and the corresponding costs of the contract revenue.
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e IR R AR Y R

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. WmKk o EER
INFORMATION
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents construction WaEmMAAREENEETE  BEFEKAREPESE
contract receipts in the ordinary course of business. Revenue are BHHWA - R EHEBRKEAT -

recognised during the reporting period are as follows:

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (@ SHEREFFEANKE
customers

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\E

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT

By timing of revenue recognition: RUEERFEE D
Control transferred over time BE Iy 3 8 25 T 48 7% e 45 i 4 364,165 408,944

2019 2018
—E-hE l BIC S

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# T

By type of services: REREERES

Provision of wet trades works services RERK TR 364,165 408,944
(b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (b) DEREHRTEANEEINRZE

performance obligations

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised TREEFHRRBEERER —hEF=

in the future related to performance obligations that were A=+—BIRERK (S ’ﬁﬂikﬁk)ﬂ'ﬂ%m

unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2019. EEEBEOYE -

2019
—g-nE

HK$’000
TERT

Remaining performance obligations expected to be FEHAEZETHAHLEFEERN

satisfied during the year ending: BRTENEE:
31 March 2020 —T-TF=A=+—H 127,052
The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph C5(d) of AEEREAEBUBREERE 1595EC50)
HKFRS 15 and does not disclose information about remaining BEMAITRENT S TEBREE@ARZ
performance obligations as at 31 March 2018 expected to be Z-N\EF=ZA=+—HANRTROEE(GEH
satisfied in the future. RBBER)EE -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
| N F O R M ATI O N (Continued)

(c) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

e TS ERAR MIEE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

(0 FABREIEEFHEHR

B EEASEBRAREBBEI0DRHERFA
™

2019 2018
—g-ng —TN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH TR

Customer A ZFEA
Customer B ®FB
Customer C BFEC

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total
revenue of the Group.

2 The above customers represent a collection of companies within a
group.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
board of directors of the Company. The board of directors regards
the Group's wet trades works service business as a single
operating segment and regularly reviews the operating results of
the Group as a whole when making decisions about resources to
be allocated and assessing its performance. Also, the Group only
engages its business in Hong Kong. Therefore, all revenue of the
Group is derived from operations carried out in Hong Kong and
all non-current assets of the Group are located in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, no segment information is presented.

6. OTHERINCOME AND GAIN

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents construction
contract receipts in the ordinary course of business. Revenue are
recognised during the reporting period are as follows:

273,667 206,667
42,023 NA N3 A !
NA RE A 85,3242

! B i 28 I B 7S SR B 4B W 2 R B 10% ©

? bR FiEREMARN ARG -

EREAAANEEGRTELERRSE -
EEEEAEENRKIEREES R —E
B-gegnd - WtoRERNRE RTM-
RETHEMRNEE A BB EEE - 1o
$$l IR BEBREGHER - At - AEE

2EWRDIRERBEBEITHER ﬂ$%
.iuB#/maﬁgﬂfiﬁ/\\%/% R 2
DEER -

6. HWAK W=

W TR A RENEERE  HEREBBEREE
BHRA - RIREHE RGN T

2019 2018
S i

HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FHT

Bank interest income RITH B UA

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & MR & s
Others HAh

Reversal of loss allowance (Notes 17 and 19) Bl E 1R RS (M a1

448 228
= 1

6 54

7k 19) 151 5,109
605 5,392
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n‘/_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE ==&

7.

B I ERR M

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

~NF=ZA=F—HILFE

7. BRFTSEFA]

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging: &3 A% FI 2 HI A & 18 -

Depreciation of owned assets
Less: Amount included in gross amounts due
from/(to) customers for contract work

Operating lease rental in respect of machinery and
equipment
Add: Amount included in gross amounts due
from/(to) customers for contract work

Auditors’ remuneration
Listing expenses
Operating lease rental in respect of
— Premises
— Car parks
Provision for loss allowance (Notes 17 and 19)
Subcontracting fee included in direct costs
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments (Note 8)

BEEERE
W AT AN () B P
ENTEFARENSHE

RS MRRNEEHERS

M AR (B RF
BT EFAREN SR

1% 25 Bl 357 B

Eaiiliiba
BRANTHEMNKERSEMAS
— W

—EE

BB (MaF 17K 19)
AIAEEBANSBE
BIRA(BIEEEZMS)(H1:8)
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2019
—E-NF

HK$'000
FEx

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
TR

1,409 867
= 31)
1,409 836
228 396

- 39

228 435
1,000 1,000
- 13,581

680 632

81 64
1,723 2,513
268,522 303,532
17,219 18,851




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

e IR R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF

8. EERAMX (BRESMHE)

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZT—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e EMREMEYRGR 16,646 17,202
Retirement scheme contributions RORGT B

— defined contribution plan — EREHKGETE 573 610
17,219 17,812

Add: Amount included in gross amounts due o ET AN (R BP
from/(to) customers for contract work AN TREREEBENSRE - 1,039
17,219 18,851

The Group operates defined contribution schemes in Hong Kong which
comply with the requirements under the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") Schemes Ordinance. All assets under the schemes are held
separately from the Group under independently administered funds.
Contributions to the MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director and chief executive for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 is set out below:

HK

Year ended 31 March 2019 BE_Z-NE

Fee

ik
$/000
TER

AEERERGIERES (RES ) FEEIRR
EEBEEREERRIGE - LA THMREE
EABYESEREARECEEDFREE - 0
SRt BIHFURERIE ST BUGDI#TT -

9. EFNENREDR
() EERTBFRALGHH

BE_Z-N\FR-ZZB-NAF=A=+—H
LHEE  ZEBZRTETHRABNFHFMMOT

Salaries, Retirement

allowancesand Discretionary scheme
benefit in kind bonuses contributions Total

e BHR BIR
BNFE BsTA sHEIfR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TEx TER TEx TER

=ZA=+-HLEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Eric Tse (Note (7) BRI (Hrit ) - 840 35 - 875
Mr. CK Tse (Note (i) SRR S (it () - 840 35 - 875
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (“Ms. Tse") dsEa T (T#zL))
(Note (i) (et (i) - 212 20 8 240
Independent non-executive directors B JEHITEE
Mr. Tang Chi Wai (Note (ii)) BB & 5 (B (i) 180 = - = 180
Ms. Chung Lai Ling (Note (iif) BER T (M) 180 = = = 180
Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong BRI (B i)
Kenji (Note (iif) 180 - - = 180
Non-executive director IHTEF
Mr. Chan Wai Lung (Note (iv)) BRIEBE LA (Hat (v) 116 - - - 116
656 1,892 90 8 2,646

MERIREEERARAE — 570 0t
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e IR R AR Y R

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

9. BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9. EBNERER

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESRTETBRABNGHME)
(Continued)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Discretionary scheme
Fee fit in kind bonuses contributions
ik i i BIETEAL st &Itk it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT FHET TAT o BIT
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_Z-N\f§
ZA=1+-HLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Eric Tse (Note (i) HRR S £ (7L () - 840 - - 840
Mr. CK Tse (Note (i) HRE K (R () - 840 - - 840
Ms. Tse (Note (i) Bt (Hat i) - 480 60 18 558
Independent non-executive ~ BUHFHITEE
directors
Mr. Tang Chi Wai (Note (i)~ BVE1{& 5 & (H7 (i) 100 - - - 100
Ms. Chung Lai Ling (Note (iii))  $8BB¥ 2z (M1 (i) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong BRSNS (B (i)
Keniji (Note (iii)) 100 - - - 100
300 2,160 60 18 2,538
During the year ended 31 March 2019, no emoluments were paid REE-_ZE—NE=A=+—HItEE &

100

by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: Nil).

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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MAREESHRBRBEBRBEE(ZZ N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(Conti

(a)

(b)

inue (4)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse were appointed as directors of the
Company on 12 April 2017 and redesignated as executive directors
of the Company on 14 September 2017. They were also directors
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and/or employees of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 and the Group
paid emoluments to them in their capacity as the directors of these
subsidiaries and/or employees of the Group before their
appointment as executive directors of the Company. Mr. Eric Tse is
also appointed as chief executive director of the Company on 10
September 2018.

(ii) Ms. Tse was appointed as director of the Company on 12 April 2017
and redesignated as executive director of the Company on 14
September 2017. Ms. Tse is the chief executive officer of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 up to 10
September 2018 the date of her resignation as executive director
of the Company.

(iif) Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji, Ms. Chung Lai Ling and Mr. Tang Chi
Wai were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 11 September 2017.

(iv) Mr. Chan Wai Lung was appointed as non-executive director of the
Company on 10 August 2018.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two of them
are directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: two), whose
emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments in respect of
the remaining three individuals for the year ended 31 March 2019
are as follows (2018: three):

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT
Retirement scheme contributions RIKET B R

The emoluments of each of the above non-directors, highest paid
individuals were below HK$1,000,000. During the year ended 31
March 2018 and 2019, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the above highest paid individuals as (i) an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or (i) compensation for loss of office as a
director or management of any members of the Group.

RBE R E M E YN

e TS ERAR MIEE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

9. ESFMBmKRER )

(@) ESRIBITBAENFHHME)

BiRE -

(0 IR LRI ER =T —EFMA
ToAREARAATEEURN =B+
ENATEAREARATRTES - REl
-2 \FR-F-NE=A=+-B1t
EF RETRAERAANETHEANES

k/SAEENEE  MAERSHEERAK
RARTEEZ AT AEBARERZEM

BARMERR SAEENEEFHARK
SXHHE - SHIRREENTR =T~ \FN
B+ REZERARRNITHRAER

(i) HZEIR -_ZE—LFNA+-—ARZERE

RAEBEURR-_Z—LFENATHARE

ARAATEE -RBE_T-N\F=A

=+ —RLEFE  HRLRARBNITHE

2 HEEZ-N\FAATERERRFH
TEEERARL-

iy ERXELE BERLEIEBERLENRZ
E—t+FNAT—HEZERKRRRBILE
WITES -

(v  BREERLER-F—
RAFIFRITES -

(b) HEERSHFMAL
RBE_T-NF=A=+—HILEEE
aREFHALTES DA RE RS B
ALTRER(CZE-N\F MR KEHL
REXHEE RBE_Z-NAF=A=+—
BIEFE BESKRT=2&=HMA M

NENAT+BEZRER

SWMT(ZE—\F: =4) :
2019 2018
S N —N#
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
1,680 1,491
- 460
54 54
1,734 2,005
LR EFEFEBFMALOMSIHER

1,00000087C - RBE_Z—\FR=_T—N
FZRA=+—RILFE NEEBERL
BEH A TS EA ) IAAE @ 5
A ZS 52 [B1% B 22 B 3K (ii) 1B B AN S BT ik
ERTNESHEIR BB M -

MERIREEZRARAT —— 5500
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e IR R AR Y R

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BLE B AN

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT

Interest on bank overdrafts IRITBEXFE 18 215

18 215

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FrEBiFA X

2019 2018
—B-NF —ZT—N\fF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT

Hong Kong profits tax BEENEB
Current tax on profits for the year FREN O EBRTIR 2,525 4,887
Adjustment in respect of prior year RE—FEELAR - (42)
Current income tax B HTSH 2,525 4845
Deferred income tax (Note 25) RIEFTERL (M et 25) = 581
2,525 5426
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland RZZE—-—N\F=A=+—H" %5%&5%@@@(2017
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the FERE(IEET) (B7) M=) ([EelIER]) -
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 AREERES - GO ERERR =T —-—NF= ﬂ
March 2018 and was gazette on the following day. The two-tiered profits T N\BREZFEY - WKREH F‘ % FIA5 B /M AR
tax rates regime will be applicable to a subsidiary of the Group for its FERARAEEET —EANBRARRZE—N\F
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018. mA—A IZT&%?@E’]EE#&%% °
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of RIBFSHE MRS - & &% E 5 E 2000000 % 7T %
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits M H) T Z B 8.25% + M8 18 2,000,000 7 7T j FI| B Tt &
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31 March B165% REBE-_ZT—NF=ZA=1+—HILEFE"
2019, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity is calculated in SERERNEBNERIRBEFSHMARGIGE
accordance with the two-tiered profit tax rates regime. The profits of TEEBRZBRFEGHMAGINEMCEESEEE R
other group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered WafEESRRE _E-—NF=ZA=+—HILHF
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5% EBEREESIRB BB M EREEF165%
of the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong (ZZF—/\F : 16.5%) BB — T REFH -

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: 16.5%).
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13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate

as follows:

Profit before income tax

Calculated at the statutory tax rate

Tax effects of:

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income
tax asset was recognised

Adjustment in respect of prior year

Tax concession

Income tax expense

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the number of ordinary shares (2018:
weighted average number of ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (HK$'000)

Number of ordinary shares in issue/
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue (thousands of shares)

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share as
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the year

ended 31 March 2018 and 2019.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2018: Nil).

e TS ERAR MIEE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

1. Fﬁ?% RFaﬁizb

ANER 1B Bk P 1S 5 A i M RO B IR B0 A B RS
REANEmSEME ROEZEWT

S

2019
—g-nE

2018
=z
HKS'000
TAET

HK$’000
FET

B P45 758 A s 7 14,455 18,667
BEEBEGTE 2,220 3,080
ﬁf%&ﬂ

ZEE 01N (74) (38)
T ATNFF S - 2,242
WERRIELEMESHIBEE

KT IE B 18 399 214
RE—FEELAE - (42)
RisESR (20) (30)
RSB 2,525 5426

12. #RER

BEREABNRARBEE AREEMNEAFAD
BITBRMEE (ZT—N\F  ERRNETIESE)

= o
Ft

2019
S N

2018
—\F
HK$'000
TAT

HK$000
THET

$Eﬂ}iﬁ“ﬁ/\ﬁ'§4£}ﬁﬁﬂ(:ﬁ%fc) 11,930 13,241
BETETREREAE CRITEER
MEFHE(FHR)
600,000 525616
0.02 0.03
HREZE-_E—N\EER_FT—NAF=ZA=+—A81L
¢F§jﬁ/ﬁ5%§fma&ﬁﬁ/§i B MEREEAT
HEFREABFRE
13. RE
BHE_Z-AEF=ZA=+—RHLFE HEALXRQ
AIEBERRR ST M ERTIRRE - AREHRRE
MEEZSREMBRE(ZZE—NF &) -
BERIREEZERERAT 10 G0
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e IR R AR Y R

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

14. SUBSIDIARIES 14, B2 F]
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 WTARZZE-—N\FRZZE-NF=ZA=1+—HH
and 2019: FEMBRAFGIK
Proportion
Issuedand  ownership interest
Legal form, date and place of fully paid up held by the
Name of subsidiary incorporation/operations share capital Company Principal activities
EERR - AL ERTRAR ERRFEH
MWEARER REH BRI LENES BERERLS FEXK
Noble Wisdom Holdings Limited liability company US$4.00 100% (direct)  Investment holding
Limited ("Noble Wisdom") incorporated on 5 40037 1000 (HE) H®EEK

aEERERAB(SE] January 2017, the BVI
RZZ—+F—ARA=M
RUWERAR REBRELHS

Eric Tse Cement Works Limited liability company HK$10,000,000.00 100% (indirect)  Provision of wet trades
Company Limited incorporated on 8 10,000,000.00 4 7T 100% (FE %) works in Hong Kong
KRR TIRER AT October 1997, Hong Kong REBRMKIRE
R—hNEF+ANBFMRKZ 7
MERDR &
15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 15. ST AEDE
CATEGORY

2019 2018
S i = \F

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# T

Financial assets SRMEE

At amortised costs: FREESE PN

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments % 5 & E b EWFUIE - TEIEFEN B 21,064 63,245

Bank balances R1THERS 53,849 62,915

Restricted cash ZRHIRE = 820
74,913 126,980

Financial liabilities EA =N

At amortised costs: ff&%fﬁﬁ@ﬁ :

Trade and other payables 5 K H M FERT 8 14,704 29,096
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e TS ERAR MIEE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. & R &%

Office Motor Machinery and
equipment vehicles equipment

WORE AE HERRE

e R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$000
TAT AT TAT TAL

Cost DN

Asat 1 April 2017 RZE—tFNA—A 205 1319 3,038 4562

Additions NE 32 - 2211 2243

Disposal HE - - (168) (168)

Asat 31 March 2018 R-ZE-\#=A=+—H 237 1319 5,081 6,637
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE

Asat 1 April 2017 RZE—tFNA—H 14 1,175 1370 2,559

Charge for the year FERNITE 45 13 709 867

Disposal e - A (168) (168)

As at 31 March 2018 R-ZE—-/\#=A=+—H 59 1288 1911 3,258
Net book value REFE

Asat 31 March 2018 RZE—-/\¥=A=1+—H 178 31 3170 3,379
Cost AR

Asat 1 April 2018 RZZE—-\FMA—H 237 1319 5,081 6,637

Additions RE 127 - 3625 3,752

As at 31 March 2019 R=B-hE=B=+—-H 364 1,319 8,706 10,389
Accumulated depreciation ZEE

Asat 1 April 2018 R-ZE-\ENA—H 59 1,288 1,911 3,258

Charge for the year FRFTE 48 31 1,330 1,409

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-AE=A=+—H 107 1,319 3,241 4,667
Net book value REFE

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-RAE=A=+—H 257 - 5,465 5,722
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RS

17.

B I ERR M

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

CONTRACT ASSETS

BHEE
B R

Contract assets
Less: loss allowance

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from contract
works as the Group's rights to receive consideration from its customers
are conditional upon the completion of surveys of works carried out.
Upon completion of the surveys of work, payment certificates would
then be issued, upon which the Group’s right to consideration become
unconditional and the amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables. Typically, the time interval between the
performance of works and the Group's right to consideration becoming
unconditional range from one to twelve months for the construction
contracts engaged by the Group (2018: from one to two months), except
for retention monies receivables (see below).

As at 31 March 2019, the balance of contract assets included retention
monies receivables from customers amounting to approximately
HK$34,983,000, net of provision for credit loss allowance.

The Group generally allows 3% to 10% of total contract price of its
contracts as retention, which are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable at the completion of the defects liability period of individual
contracts which range from 12 months to 24 months from the date of
the completion of the respective contract. The Group is responsible for
rectifying defects or imperfections in relation to the contract works done
which are discovered after completion.

The due date for settlement of the Group's retention monies receivables
are based on the completion of defects liability period as at 31 March
2019 as follows:

Due within one year
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—FREIH

feay
X
T

2019 2018
—g-ng —z-N\F

HK$’000
TERT

HK$'000
TR

60,619 -
(1,721) -

58,898 -

ARAEEAE S WERERERNEFITRENT
ETREFAEER  MAENEEVSREHNIRM
RS HER - R TESSR %5 % M 3R E
ﬁ%$EI%Wﬁﬁm%ﬂ%&ﬁﬁ%# 2R
EHNEENSBEENSEEE HEKRNIE - 3t
$%@§%ﬁ THEESNME - ARTIREER
S EWER BRI A GG 2 MR -8
F—E=2+Z@ATE(ZE—N\F: —EREAR) -
MEFEWURE R BRIN R TS -

ATZ-NF=ZA=1+—8 AHNEEHEBBIEE
B EF B IRE £ 434,983,000 T (B B &
1B

REB—MIEBEHMNBELERN3%Z 10%1EAR
B¢ - RESAERTF  2ERAIRERNALNR
EH (BT IHHBT AN T 22 24/A) Embs
WEl e REEBEFMEMETANTIENTITEE
BRI

ATAR-_Z-NF=ZA=1+—HRREHE W
mﬁ$ﬁlfWﬁI$mﬂ%E

31 March 2019
= i
=ZA=+—H

HK$000
THER

34,983
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The entire balance of the Group's retention receivables as at 31 March
2019 were not yet due. The Group does not hold any collateral over this
balance.

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2019, the Group applies the
simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all contract assets. To measure the expected credit losses, contract
assets have been grouped based on individual risk assessment and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. The
expected credit losses below also incorporate forward-looking
information.

Provision for loss allowance in respect of retention monies receivables as
at 31 March 2019 includes an amount of approximately HK$1,536,000 in
respect of a customer which was individually assessed to be credit
impaired. Based on the Group's assessment of the poor financial
condition of the customer, a 100% expected loss rate was applied to the
retention monies receivables outstanding as at 31 March 2019.

17 I:In\ljé-m\?”

e TS ERAR MIEE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

—NF=ZA=+—BAErEERKRES 2
ﬁ%i’jrﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬂ RNEEN A AR R
ﬁ#ﬁuu °

E-NENA-AEABEEEBRELEAF
S ARBERABCERBTEMBRELRE
SREAHEREEBREE - BEM B RS ER
EORETRMBANEEEA2NRPEEEE -
R BEBEEEE - & OEERKERERT(E
DR/ AEREABYRNBEERERSE-
TIHEHEEEEITMARIEER

RIZE-NEF=ZA=+—HREKRESNEBEE
BESR—2FENTEALREERENTFH
S EH 1536000870 c ERAKEBEFHZEETEFPH
FBRRRE RZE—NAF=ZA=+—B0&
FEUIR E & B FEF 100% TEHRIB L K -

Contract assets
EREE

As at 31 March 2019

R-B-AFE=A=+—H

Expected credit loss rate (average) FEHEEEBR(FY) 2.84%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) ARTE B (E (%) 60,619
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) EHEEEE (THmT) 1,721
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e IR R AR Y R

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

P
1 7 CO NTRACT ASS ETS (Continued) 17. = mlj = F
The movement in the provision for loss allowance in respect of contract HE-Z-—hWGF=ZA=T—RILFEREHNEES
assets during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as follows: ROEEREZBIT -

Lifetime ECL —
Lifetime ECL credit impaired Total
RS 2MAREEES

BB — R @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FET

As at 31 March 2018 RZZE—N\F=A=+—H - - -
Effect arising from initial application of VIAFE BB B A& %R
HKFRS 9 FoRmTE 160 45 205

As at 1 April 2018 (restated) R-E-NFHNA—RA(KEH) 160 45 205
Provision made for the year FEREHNEE 97 1,536 1,633
Reversal for the year FREE (72) (45) (117)
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZZB-hE=A=+—H 185 1,536 1,721
(a) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (a) BMANEERIANKE

assets

The following table shows how much of the trade receivables TERETNRERENFEERNE S EUGK

recognised in the respective reporting period relates to carried- P REESNEENSTE -

forward contract assets.

2019
—E-hEF

HK$’000
TERT

Transfers from the contract assets recognised at BEFVEZNENEEERS
the beginning of the year to trade receivables féf%ﬁg%l«m 29,264
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e IR R AR Y R

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

18. GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 18. B EENEFMEHNIRER

19.

CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORK TH 44 58

2019 2018
—2-hE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FHT

Gross amounts due from customers for EWEFNANIRFERTE
contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits FTEE A& KIRK AN 10 E R T
less recognised losses B R 18 - 563,633
Less: Progress billings received and receivables B DU EGE S BRE - (544,559)
- 19,074
Gross amounts due to customers for ENEENEHNIREREARE
contract work
Progress billings received and receivables B EYCE SRR & = 273,779
Less: Contract costs incurred plus recognised B FTEE A IR A INE HER
profits less recognised losses st AR B R SR 1 - (270,264)
- 3,515
=] =h
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EZ K HMEWFIE

2019 2018
—B-hF —ZE—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# T

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 18,400 20,129
Less: Provision for loss allowance (Note ¢) B BB (M) (151) (69)
Trade receivables — net (Note a) B 5 W FOREEE (Mita) 18,249 20,060
Retention (Note b) RES (Mfatb) - 35,246
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HihEWEIE « 124 MTENZIE 4,514 8,426
Less: Provision for loss allowance (Note ¢) W EERE (AiEc) (19) —

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — net  H M EWFRIE « 124 &

FEfTIEF R 4,495 8,426

22,744 63,732

MERIREEZRARAT —— 5500
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RS

B I ERR M

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved)

@)

Trade receivables
The credit period granted to customers are ranging from 17 to 33
days generally.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date
is as follows:

0-30 days 0Z30H
31-60 days 31 HE60H
61-90 days 61HZE9H

Trade receivables of approximately HK$10,112,000 as at 31 March
2019 were not yet past due (2018: approximately HK$18,715,000),
and approximately HK$8,137,000 as at 31 March 2019 were past
due but not impaired (2018: approximately HK$1,345,000). These
relate to trade receivables from a number of independent
customers of whom there is no recent history of default and no
written off has therefore been made. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

0%230H
31HZE60H

0-30 days
31-60 days

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recognised a
loss allowance of HK$151,000, based on individual risk assessment
and/or collectively using a provision matrix. The movement of the
loss allowance is set out in Note c.

Retention receivables were not past due as at 31 March 2018, and
were to be settled in accordance with the terms of respective
contract.
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&7
=

(a)

H b B W FR0R

B 5 EWIR

EFEPHEES—BAT 1 AESA -

RIFER
™

2019
—g-nE

HK$’000
TERT

B EIH B 5 M U IR A BR B 0 AT 40

2018
—ZT—N\F
HK$'000
F#IT

11,721 17,413
6,440 2,631
88 16
18,249 20,060
TZ-—NEFE=ZA=+—RH BZEKRFE
7101 20008 THABEH(ZE—NF : 4
187150007 7C) * MR T —NF=A=+—

B #98,137,000/% T 2 # A Efﬁﬂﬁiﬁ(:‘?

— \5F : 49134500078 7T) °

IEFIRRS £

I 8 3T Hi e R AR SR B L B P 0 E 5 K

HERE FUbIWEMES -
BRI AT

2019
S N

HK$’000
THET

ZEE HRKFA

2018
=&
HK$'000
TAT

6,882 1,329
1,255 16
8,137 1,345

REzE—_ZT—

NE=ZA=+—HLEFE" K

S @ EA R T L5 A %%EI@E
BERER BB 151,000/ T - BB EE

%ZR\\MTHEC S

R=F-N\F=A=1—A

R RESY

EaH - WIRREBENEIEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

©

Provision for loss allowance

Prior to the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
reviews trade and other receivables for evidence of impairment
on both an individual and collective basis. Based on the
impairment assessment, provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables are recognised in respect of accurate due from
debtors which were in financial difficulties in repaying the
outstanding balances. Included in the provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables, which was measured based on
incurred credit losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 March 2018 was a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
approximately HK$69,000 with a carrying amount before
provision of approximately HK$85,000.

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on individual risk assessment and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. The
expected credit losses below also incorporate forward-looking
information.

0-30 days

0£30H

e IR R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF

19. E5 R H WA @)

(0 FHEEERE
RZZT—)/\FOA—HEARBSWHHRESE
BIZE oAl - AEEIZER REBEERMZ
5 N E ARG IB AR E B o IRIBRER
h EREEENRESHE LRV R H
WEEARKIERE 5 & H b & W FIE R E
B R_T- \F=A=+—HWME5 R
HEMEBGRIERERE (RES BT ERNE
VFREDEAEEEBTE) BERAZY
69,0007 7T B8 B (B 5 FE W38 (& Al
BRTE{E 475 85,000 78 7T ) TR R B -

RIE-N\FOA-BRAEBUBRELE
RISk 212 AEERBBEREEMS
WEEFEORRERIAHAEEHEERME -
EEMNBMELERNE SR ERNBEZEK
REEAEHEREREE - AFTERBE
EEE EHRWEREENRBRTGS
BE/SEBAGEDBNEEERERS
e THRMEEEBRTMAREER

Trade
receivables

31-60 days 61-90 days Over 90 days Total

BSEK
RIEAE

31260 H 61Z90H BB oo H

As at 31 March 2019 R-B-h#F
ZA=t-H
Expected credit loss rate (average) TEHA(EEEIER (F19) 0.05% 0.02% 0% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BREA2{E (F7&7T) 11,727 6,441 88 144 18,400
Expected credit losses (HK$'000)  FBERAE & E1E (T/8T) 6 1 = 144 151
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e IR R AR Y R

Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES oninvey 19. B 8 & H b FEURFRIE (4

(©)  Provision for loss allowance (Continued) (© FHERESERE(E)
The movement in the provision for loss allowance in respect of LWTAHEZE-_Z—NF=-A=-1T—HLFE
trade receivables during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as KB S EUGRIERBIEREZE
follows:

Lifetime ECL —
Lifetime ECL credit impaired Total

2HEMFESR

WA AR — R @it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T FT FHT

As 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=A=+—H - - -
Provision made for the year FRIEL M B - 69 69
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H - 69 69
Effect arising from initial application — #J#A & A &SI SR =R

of HKFRS 9 EoRHTE 8 - 8
As at 1 April 2018 (restated) R-ZE—-N\FWA—H

(REF) 8 69 77

Provision made for the year FREHHDEE 8 74 82
Reversal for the year FREE ®) - (8)
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZFE-hAhFE=B=+—8 8 143 151
Provision for loss allowance in respect of trade receivable as at 31 —NWF=RA=+—HEZRWZKED
March 2019 includes an amount of approximately HK$143,000 in Eﬂa\ﬁé{ﬁ@%ﬁ& ZwERIFEE A LR E
respect of a customer which was individually assessed to be BERENT P S A 1430008 T « ERA
credit impaired. Based on the Group's assessment of the poor SETEZEREPNMBOARARE R
financial condition of the customer, a 100% expected loss rate —NE=ZRA=+—HWEXRESHEKRFIED
was applied to the trade receivables outstanding as at 31 March FEF 100% TE BRB K K -
2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE =%

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

©

Provision for loss allowance (Continued) (0
Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2019, the Group

applies the general approach to providing for expected credit

losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the 12m

ECL for all the deposit and other receivables. To measure the

expected credit losses, deposits and other receivables have been

grouped based on individual risk assessment and/or collectively

using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. The

expected credit losses below also incorporate forward looking

information.

As at 31 March 2019 R-B-AE=A=+—H

Expected credit loss rate (average) TEHEEEEE(TY)
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) IRTE 8 (E (F%T)
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TBEEEEE (TET)

The movement in the provision for loss allowance in respect of
deposits and other receivables during the year ended 31 March
2019 was as follows:

B IR R R M

—NF=ZA=F—HILFE

an\

H b B W FR0R

FHREIERE (&)

RZZTE—NFOA—HEABSWHEHRESE
BB 9SE 218 - AEEMRE—HNRE BN
RS ERIE R B T IRTEHE BB IS &
- BAMBRELAFOSFTENRMBIES
MEMERGRESFER 12E A EREEBIER
B ATEEHEEEE B hEMER
FEREBEERNRBFESER SEALEE
ﬁ“@m%ﬁﬁ@%?“ﬁ THEEEE
BRIV AMARIEER -

Deposits and
other receivables

BER
H fth & W R H

0.67%
2,834

19

BE_Z-NF=-A=T—HULFENZRSE
R Bt e YRR HR OB R B E BN T

Deposits and
other receivables

BER

H At B IR
HK$'000
THT

As at 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 and ﬂ Z—+F=A=+—80" —tFMA-B R

31 March 2018 —\F=A=+—H S
Effect arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 %ﬂﬁAFEﬁﬁ BRI EMEERFE R E 37
As at 1 April 2018 (restated) R-ZE—N\FWA—H(KEH) 37
Provision made for the year FAELBEE 8
Reversal for the year FREMD (26)
As at 31 March 2019 R=ZZB-AF=ZA=+—H 19
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RS

For the yearended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

19.

20.

21.

B I ERR M

~NF=ZA=F—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved)

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables
are denominated in HKS.

(e) The other classes within trade and other receivables do not

contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks
Short-term bank deposit

RITHE
5 RRITE R

Less: Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in HKS.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group's banking facilities
were secured by car parking spaces and properties owned by Mr. Eric
Tse, Mr. CK Tse and their spouses, and personal guarantee granted by Mr.
Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse. The secured car parking spaces and properties
owned by Mr. Eric Tse, Mr. CK Tse and their spouses, and personal
guarantees granted by Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse were released in
September 2017.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's banking facilities were secured by
unlimited corporate guarantee executed by the Company and the
pledged bank deposits with effective interest rate 1.5% and maturity of
this deposits is 92 days.

RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash represent deposits held at an insurance company for
faithful performance in accordance with the terms of the contract
between the Group and the customer.
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19.

20. #

21.

I

2 5 R H A B R IE

IR 0 2 55 T A MO
HE -

\

EREERET

e

@ EHIRAEMBUFIANEMMERIRRIHE
BE - AEBEWESEEFERRIERER -

R 1T 45 BR

2019
—E-NF

2018
—=—N\F
HK$'000
T T

HK$’000
TERT

33,708 57,915
20,141 5,000
53,849 62,915
(5,088) -
48,761 62,915

RekReSEWAETIIE -

RITIR SRR T A RITEFN L7 B = FREA

B o
N
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e IR R AR Y R

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. BA
Details of the Company’s authorised and issued ordinary share capital are RARBVEERBBETEBRAZFHEAT
as follows:
Number of
ordinary shares Share Capital
EEREE ;&
HK$'000
FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each TREE 001 Tz Bl
Authorised: EE
Asat 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 %fjg NEFEMA—B R
—tF=A=+—8H - -
Upon incorporation of the Company on Eé‘:%*tilﬂﬂ +=A
12 April 2017 AR R FEM AR S @) 10,000,000 100
Increase in number of authorised shares VETE R0 EX B 35 N (b) 1,490,000,000 14,900
As at 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and R-ZZE—-N\F=A=+—8"
31 March 2019 —E-N\FOA-BR
—E-AF=A=+-—H 1,500,000,000 15,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
As at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 RZZE—"FHA—AK
—ET—+H=ZHA=+—H - =
Upon incorporation of the Company on RZE—tFWOA+=H
12 April 2017 PIN/NSI B3 1 RV €) 1 -
Shares issued upon the Reorganisation REAEREITRRG (© 9,999 -
Shares issued pursuant to the RIEE A EHITEITHRD
capitalisation issue (d) 449,990,000 4,500
Shares issued pursuant to the share offer BRI D EHITRRG (e) 150,000,000 1,500
As at 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and R=B-NE=A=+—-8"
31 March 2019 —E-N\FOA-BR
—®_hE=f=+-8 600,000,000 6,000
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For the yearended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

~NF=ZA=F—HILFE

22 SHARE CAP'TAL (Continued)

28

Notes:

(a)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 12 April 2017 with an initial authorised share capital of
HK$100,000 divided into 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and
one nil-paid subscriber share was issued and allotted to the subscriber
which was subsequently transferred to Land Noble on the same date.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the sole shareholder of the Company
on 14 September 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$100,000 to HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000
ordinary shares by the creation of an additional 1,490,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation and as consideration for the acquisition by
the Company of the entire issued share capital of Noble Wisdom from Mr.
Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse on 6 September 2017, the Company issued and
allotted 9,999 ordinary shares to Land Noble, all credited as fully paid
respectively.

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 14 September 2017 and conditional upon the share premium
account of the Company being credited as a result of the share offer, the
Company authorised to allot and issued a total of 449,990,000 ordinary
shares credited as fully paid at par to the holder of the Company’s shares
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 14
September 2017 by way of capitalisation of the sum of approximately
HK$4,500,000 standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company.

On 29 September 2017, upon its listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
the Company issued 150,000,000 new ordinary shares at an offer price of
HK$0.47 each and raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$70,500,000.

RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued at a premium, less expenses
incurred in connection with the issue of the shares.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the Reorganisation.
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 September 2017. The Scheme is to
attract and retain the best personnel, to provide additional incentive to
the eligible participants under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, grant options to any
employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants, advisors,
substantial shareholder, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The eligibility of any participants to
the grant of any options shall be determined by the directors of the
Company (or as the case maybe, the independent non-executive
directors of the Company) from time to time on the basis of the directors’
opinion as to their contribution or potential to the development and
growth of the Group.

The aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share options schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Company's shares in issue from time to
time. No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other share
options schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being
exceeded. The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company as from the adoption date must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue upon the date on which
the shares are listed and permitted to be dealt in the Stock Exchange.
The 10% limit may be refreshed at anytime by approval of the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting provided that the total number of the
Company'’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the refreshed limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue. Where any further grant of options to a participant under the
Scheme would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such participant (including
lapsed or exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12- month
period up to and including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the total number of shares in issue, such further
grant must be separately approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting.

e IR R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF

24.
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Fortheyearended 31 March2019 B2 =F—hF=H=+—HILFE

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continved) 24. BBIRESTE )

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
grantee). Where any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of
their respective close associates would result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to such person in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and having an aggregate value in
excess of HKS5 million must be approved by the Company's shareholders
at the general meeting of the Company, with voting to be taken by way
of poll.

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in writing within
21 days from the date of the offer. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as
the directors may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option with a remittance in favour of the Company within such time
as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than 21 days
from the date of the offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined by the board of
directors of the Company and notified to a participant and shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
(i) the average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company's share on the offer date.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 14 September 2017, subject to early termination
provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed since the
adoption of the Scheme and there were no share option outstanding as
at 31 March 2018 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

25. IEZE TS

e IR R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE_—F—NF=H=—+—HILFZF

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the RMEPESRE M BRAZTADERAELETIEE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during E/(AE)BREREEHmT

the reporting period are as follows:

Loss allowance
on financial
assets and
contract assets

EREER
BREEFERR
HK$'000

THET

Tax depreciation

BIRNE
HKS'000

BT

Total

@it
HK$'000
FHT

Deferred tax arising from: EEREELES
Asat 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFHA—H 440 (261) 179
Charged to profit or loss (Note 11) BE&SMR (Wi 11) (428) (153) (581)
Asat 31 March 2018 RZZE-\F=ZR=+—H 12 414) (402)
Effect arising from initial application of 16 FE BB B S ZE Al

HKFRS 15 FISHAEENTE = 13 13
Effect arising from initial application of TR ER B ST BHE £

HKFRS 9 BOFFEENTE 41 = 41
As at 1 April 2018 (restated) R-E-NFNA—R(KEH) 53 (401) (348)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss BiBzE %, (0BR) (Mat11)

(Note 11) 259 (259) =
As at 31 March 2019 RZZB-NEF=ZA=+—-8H 312 (660) (348)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets in respect of the tax losses as the directors of the Company
consider that it is uncertain as to the extent that future profits will be
available against which tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable
future.

FER A] BE 375 4B 7R 2R JE AR 15 ) ) 2 3R AR RA TR A5 A 22 0
BAT  eRaENRBERERREMSHEE -
AEBTEARGEREDECENSREE - RE
REARRERR RN LARRA KRG E RN
R A £ TR R

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$3,716,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,299,000), which are available
for offset against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely
and are subject to approval from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department.

RIZE-—AE=ZA=+—0 KEENARSAHRS
B 18 #49753,71600078 7T (ZZF — /\FF : £91,299,0007%8
JL) A EREEE DR AREF) - ARG ES
RIS BRBLE ©

— =
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Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

=z =
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EZ R HMEFKIE
2019
=ZE-NF
HK$’000
FTHET
Trade payables B 5 EN IR 11,608 26,018
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K H A RS FRIE 3,096 3,078
14,704 29,096
Payment terms granted by suppliers of materials and subcontractors are BTRHMER LD BEONTIER—BNF0E
ranging from 0 to 30 days generally. 304 -
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date is as REEZAHNE ZEMNFENRRSITAT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TERT FHET
0-30 days 0ZF30H 11,592 25,692
1-60 days 31HE60H 16 107
1-90 days 61BZE90H - 219
11,608 26,018
All trade and other payables are denominated in HKS. FIEE 5 RAEMERFHIBLABITEHE
BRERERME
27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. mEREMNERMFE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing TERFVNAEEREZDEENED - REZTDE
activities. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which £8a 1555&&;1—;;{(1’] RAREBGABRERERD
cash flows were, or future cash flow will be classified in the Group's HARMESEIHEAESRENEas -

consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

As at As at
1 April 2017 Cash flows 31 March 2018
R=Z—+tF R=Z—-N\F

mA—A RERE =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THAT THAT

Amounts due to directors FEESERIE 20,432 (20,432) -

As at As at
1 April 2018 Cash flows 31 March 2019
R=B-N\F R=B-—hF

mA—A BERE =A=+—AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THT

Pledged bank deposits BHEAIRITIER - (5,088) (5,088)
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

As at the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases were payable as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE =%

28.

B IR R R M

—NF=ZA=F—HILFE

w—_l_\

I

REMEAE —FKREERFAEA

K& RETAHBECEEERRENNR
EEENFAQEEMNT

2019
—E-hF

HK$’000
TERT

HK$'000
TR

Within one year —FR 563 379
In the second to fifth years inclusive ZFEERF (PREEREMF) 6 -
569 379

The Group is the lessee in respect of premises under operating leases.
The leases typically run for initial periods of approximately 2 years, with
an option to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly
control or exert significant influence over the other party in making
financial or operational decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or joint control. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

(a Save as disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any significant related party
transaction with related parties during the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2019.

(b) The emoluments of the directors and senior executives
(representing the key management personnel) during the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 are disclosed in Note 9.

29.

AEBREBREHEBETMENAEA - ZHE
—RUFRBIME - M ERAREE - BT
B EH W -

BEERRS

ST REMBI B EERERARENES - K
Al ﬁ%'JiE@bDiﬁ%‘i"ﬁ%%—ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ o IR

FHRAREGIREAES - HRRREMT -
% EH—JLAEM/\XEWEE% 0

@ BEAaMBRRMI20MEEEN ~AEEH

B’\Et?t T-NERZZE-NF=ZA=1+—
AItFEEEEAWE I (ERENEES
R e

b)) REEZ—/N\FRZE—NF=ZA=+—

BILFE  EERSRTRAE EHERER
AB) MBS MM 9 EE -
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Fortheyearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30. N BARR KK FEiE
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—2-hf —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAT

Non-current assets IREEE

Investments in subsidiaries B R RMIRE 41,890 41,500

Current assets REEE

Prepayment TE OB 233 237

Amount due from a subsidiary JEW— F‘aEJ )=/ B 42,721 15,408

Bank balances SRITHE SR 17 29,689
42,971 45,334

Total assets wmEE 84,861 86,834

EQUITY R

Capital and reserves EARRE

Share capital &N 6,000 6,000

Reserve (Note a) i (MfaEta) 78,471 80,834

Total equity MR 84,471 86,834

Current liabilities REEE

Amount due to a subsidiary JE A< — T B B8 2 B KTIR 390 -

Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 84,861 86,334

Net current assets REBEEFE 42,581 45334

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARG 84,471 86,834

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 June RIE-NFRAZ+THhBEESGHEREET

2019. B o

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen Mr. Tse Chun Kuen

HIRIR L HIREZ

Director Director

EF EF

122 NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR Y R

Forthe yearended 31 March 2019 B ZE=—FE—NF=HA=+—HILFZ

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30. N BB BEAR R R R FEE e
AND RESERVE OF THE COM PANY (Continued)

Note (a): Reserve of the Company MizE (a) © QRS

Share premium Other reserve Accumulated losses

13 E Hetu

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Balance as at 12 April 2017 RZZE—tFWHA+=H
(date of incorporation) (FEf Sz B ER) &84 - - - -
Loss and total comprehensive BAEBELEEAZ 2%
expense for the period - - (14,653) (14,653)
Reorganisation B4 - 41,500 - 41,500
Shares issued pursuant to the BIRE M BITRITORND
capitalisation issue (4,500) - - (4,500)
Shares issued pursuant to the share offer 1815 i% 15 26 3 /TR AR 1 69,000 - - 69,000
Shares issuance costs f&in ¥ TE R (10,513) - - (10,513)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H
iR 53,987 41,500 (14,653) 80,834
Loss and total comprehensive FAEBRBLREEMAXEE
expense for the year - - (2,363) (2,363)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 R-ZB-AF=A=+—A
F== 53,987 41,500 (17,016) 78,471

MERIREEZRERAT — 55000
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Financial Summary

IR

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=t—HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016

—ZT—NF —T—+F —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT F#TT T

Revenue & 364,165 408,944 285,430 267,408

Gross profit EF 29,837 42,399 29,818 20,015

Profit before income tax b P54 B A 14,455 18,667 16,021 14,732
Profit and total comprehensive income N2 &) A A FE(S
for the year attributable to owners FERRFREE

of the Company Tt 11,930 13,241 12,556 12,321

Total assets BAE 142,120 149,920 108,333 87,623

Total liabilities weE 15,052 35,089 66,730 68,576

Total equity and liabilities pEsREE 142,120 149,920 108,333 87,623
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